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PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED

[CIN: LS1226WB1984PLCO37985]
8, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 1st Floor, Saha Court, Kolkata - 700013

DIRECTORS' REFORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting the Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited
Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2023 relating to its 39th Annual General Meeting,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS [Amount In Rs. hundred

Particulars. 203323 202133
[Rs.) {Rs.)
Operational Revenue and Other Income 188,596.65 432,659.64
Profit/{Less) before Exceptional and extraordinary 112 584.59 121,734.51
items and Tax
Exceptional items - -
Profit/{Loss) befare Extraordinary items and Tax 112,584.59 21,734.51
Extraordinary ltems - -
Profit{{Loss) before Tax 112,584.59 21,734.51
 Provision for Toxation :
Current Tax : On Income / MAT 28.670.84 5,395.45
Deferred Tax == -
Income Tax for earfier year - -
Profit/|Loss) after Tax (from continuing operation 83813.75 16,339.06
and far the year
Less: Transferred to Statutory Reserve (NBFC) | (16,783.00) {3,268.00)
Surplus brought forward from last year 81,298:24 £8,227.18
Surplus carried over 148,428,939 21,298.24
FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Total revenue for the yvear stood at Rs. 288,996.65 in hundred in comparison to last years’ revenue of fs. 432 650,64
in hundrad.

In term of Profit befare taxation, the Company has earned a pruﬂ‘r of Rs. 112,584.59 in hundred in comparison to last
years’ profit of Rs. 21,734.51 in hundred.

Profit after Tax and Extra-Ordinary Items stood at Rs, £3,913.75 hundred in comparisen to last financial year's profit
of Rs. 16,339.06 hundred.

Your Company is one of the RBI registered NBFC and is engaged in the business of finance and investments,

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the current financial year.

MATERIAL C THE

COMPANY

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company occurred between the end of
the financial year to which these financial Hatement.s. relate and on the date of the report.

ING THE FINAM
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DIVIDEND
in order to conserve resources of the company and to increase its networth, your Directors do not propose any
dividend for the vear under review,

R OF UNSCLAIME TREND TO INVE _T DUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
The provisions of section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 da not apply as there was no dividend declared and paid
during the préevious year.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
An amount of Rs. 16,783.00/- in hundred has been transferred to Statutory Reserve as per statutory requirement of
RBI guidelines as contained in section 17 (1) and 11 {1)(b) (ii) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1948,

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS. COURTS
AND TRIBUNALS

Mo significant and material orders have been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going concern
status and Company's operations in future,

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURFE/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company has no Subsidiary, Jeint Venture or Associate Companies during the year,

PUBLIC DE 5
The Company is a registered NBFC with REL. As such acceptance of Deposit Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the
company. However, the Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year,

HARE AL OF THE COMPANY
The paid up equity share capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2023 was-Rs. 725,922.50 hundred divided into
7262500 Equity Shares of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten ) each. Comprising 7249400 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each in fully paid up at a total consideration of Rs, 72,494,000/- and 13100 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each in partly
paid up at a total consideration of Ra. 982.50 hundred, During the year under review, the Company has not issued
shares with.differential voting rights nor granted stoek o plions nor sweat equity.

BUSINESS SEGMENT

Your Company is one of the RBI registered NBFC and is in the business of Binance and Investments in accordance
with the Accounting Standard 17 notified by Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules 20086,

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, Sixteen meetings of the Board of Directors of the company were
held respectively on : 04.04.2022,13.04.2022, 28.05.2022, 10.06.2022, 06.07.2022, 08.07.2022, 26.07.2022,
13.08.2022, 25.08.2022, 05.09,2022, 12.11.2022, 14.11.2022, 22,12.2022, 16.01.2023, 11.02.2023 & 17.03.2023.

The intervening gap between the two consecutive meeting is as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

The number of meetings attended by the Directors during the FY 2022-23 is as follows:

Name of the Directors Number of meetings attended

Arun Kumar Khemka 01

Arvind KEhemka 10

Raj Kumar Bajaj 16

Priti Khemka 15 ]
Rameshwar Prasad Khetan 16

Comd....
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT |
Pursuant to Section 134 [3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief,

canfirm that ¢ 1
a) in-the preparation of the accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2023, the applicable accounting

.standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any:

bl appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates
have been made that are reasonable and prudent so a5 to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the period;

c} -proper and sufficieént care has been takén for the maintenance of accounting records in accordance with the
provisigns of this Act for safaguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) the annual accounts have been prepared ona going concern basis;

&) Internal financial controls laid down by the directors have been Fi::l[l_:twud by the company and that such
internal financial controls are-adequate and we re-pperating effectively and ;

fl proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in-place and were
adequate and operating effectively.

ARTICULARS OF LOANS, i TEES OR INVESTMENTS

The Company, being a non-banking financial company registered with the REl and engaged in the business of giving
loans and investments, are exempt from complying with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect af loans
and guarantees, Accordingly, the disclosures of the loans given as required under the aforesaid section have not
been made in this Report,

COR TE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILI
The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Soclal Responsibility initiatives as
section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

DISCLOSURES SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT. 2013

As per requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace [Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013 (Act) and rules made there under, your Company has- adopted a Sexual Harassment Palicy for wemen to
ensure healthy working environment without fear of prejudice; gender bias and sexual harassment,

The Board states that there were no cases or complaints filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 for the financial year 2023-2023..

Your Directors further state that the Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention Prohibition and Redressal
| Act 2013,

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN
SECTION 158(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

All contracts [/ arrangements / transactions entered into by the Company during the financial vear ended 31st
March, 2023 with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length basis: During the
year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties which could
be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions.
Hence the Company is not required to disclose details of the related party transactions in Form AQC-2 pursuant to
clause (h] of sub-section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companles {Accounts] Rules; 2014,

Contd. .. ..
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board has developed and implemented a risk management policy including identification thergin of element of
risk , if any which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the company.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS

M OUTGO o
The provisions of Section 134{m) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to our Company. There was no foreign
exchange inflow or outflow during the year under review,

RTIC 5 OF EMPLOYEES _ o
The company has no employee who if employed throughout the financial year was in receipt of remuneration of
that year which in the aggregate not fess than one crore and two lakh rupees, and if employeed for a part of the
financial year was in receipt of remuneration for that part of that year at a rate which was in aggrefiate not less than
Eight Lakh Fifty thousand rupees per month as specified in Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment And
Remuneration ) Rules 2014,

DIRECTORS AND KE ANAGERL RSONNEI] MP
i} Directors:

Mr. Arun Kumar Khemka, Managing Director of the Company died on 27.05.2022 . Mr. Arvind Khemka was
appointed as the Managing Director of the Compa riy for a period of five years with effect from 20.07.2022.

fi] Key Managerial Personnel: _
Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Rule
B(5]{iil) of Companies (Accounts) Roles 2014 the following personnel were the Whole time Eey Managernal
Persannel of the Company within the meaning of the said section.

. Mr. Arvind Khembka, Managing Director, and
il.  Mr. Ganesh Kumar Thakur, Chief financial Officer.
NI Mr. Nikhil Bajaj, company secretary

Besides as specified above there is no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year
under review per Rule 8(5]{jii) of the Companies {(Accounts) Rules 2014,

Nane of the Directors of the Company are disqualified as per section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, The
Directors have also made necessary disclosures to the extent as required under provisions of section 184(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013,

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As per pravisions of Section 149 of the 2013 Act, independent directors shall hold office for 3 term up to five
consecutive years on the board of a company, but shall be aligible for re-appointment for another term up to five
years on passing of 3 special resolution by the company and disclosure of such appeintment in Board’s Report.
Furthér an independent director shall not be liable to retire by rotation in the Annual General Meeting ("AGM') of
the Company. Further, independent directors of the listed entity shall hold at least one meeting in a year, without
the presence of non-independent directors and members of the management and all the independent directors shall
strive to be present at such meeting.

All Independent Directors of the Company have giver declarations-that they meet the criteria of independence as
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b} of the Listing Regulations. In the apinion of the
Board, the Independent Directors, fulfill the conditions of independence specified in Section 149(8) of the Act and
Regulation 15(1) (b} of the Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors have also. confirmed that they have
complied with the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethice.

There was no change in the composition of Board during the current financial in the employees of KMP category.

Contd, ...
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors have constituted Board Committess to deal with specific areas and activities which concern

the Company and requires a closer review. The Board Committess are formed with approval of the Board and
function under their respective Charters. These Committees play an important role in the overall Management of
day-to-day affairs and governance of the Company. The Board Committees meet at regular intervals and take
ﬁe:essan.r steps to perform its duties entrusted by the Board. The Minutes of the Committee Meetings are placed
before the Board for noting,

The Company has three Board Level Committees:
A) Momination and Remuneration Committee,

B} Audit Committee,

C) Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and remuneration committee of the Board is constituted under section 178 of the Companies Act
2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI LODR Regulations 2015 and has three. Directors as it's members namely Mr.
Rameshwar Prasad Khetan, Mr. Arvind Khemka and Mr. Raj Kumar Bajaj, It i5 constituted to-formulaté the criteria
far determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director, and recommend to the Board a
policy relating to the rémuneration for the key managerial personnel and other employees of the company.

Four meetings of the aforesaid committee were held during the year on 12.05.2022, 10.08.2022, 09.11,2022 &
14.02.2023,

UDIT COMMITTEE AND ITS COMPOSITION
The Audit Commitree of the Board s constituted pursuant to section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 Regulation 18
of the SEBI LODR Regulations 2015 and comprising of 3 (three) Directors, as it's members namely Mr. Arvind
Khemka, Mr. Rameshwar Prasad Khetan and Mr, Raj Kumar Bajaj. The detailed terms of reference of the Committee
is provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the
Audit Committee,

The Audit Committee miet four times during the vear en 10.05.2022, 09.08.2022, 08.11.2022 & 13.02.2023.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is canstituted pursuant to Sub Section 5 of section of 173 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI LODR Regulations 2015 and consists of three directors namely
Mr. Raj Kumar Bajaj, Mr. Rameshwar Prasad Khetan and Mr. Arvind Khemka. This Committee Is constituted to
resofve the grievances of security holders of the Company,

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met four times during the year on 14.05.2022, 11.0B:2022, 10.11:2022 &
15022023,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANA LYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis an the operations.of the Company as prescribed under regufation 34(2) of
the Listing Regulations, 2015 is provided in a separate section and forms part of the Directors’ Report.

INTERNAL FINANCI DONTROLS 5
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls, with reference to financial statement. The internal
financial controls have been documented, digitized and embedded in the business processes, Such controls have
been assessed during the year under review and were operating effectively.

REGIE : 3 :
Your Company is a registered Non-Banking Finance Company-Non Deposit- systemically Important (NBFC-ND-51)
pursuant to the receipt of Certificate of Registration No. 05.02318 from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) dated 16th
May 1998 under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Further, your Company always aims to
operate in compliance with applicable laws and regulations and employs its best efforts towards achieving the same.
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WHISTLE BLOWER ! VIGIL MEC 15 LICY _

As required under section 177{9) & (10} of the Compantes Act, 2013, the Company has established @ mechanism for
Directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of
code of conduct or ethics policy. The mechanism also provides: for adequate safeguards against victimization of
director(s) / employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee in the exceptional cases, We affirm that during the financial year 2021-2023, no emplovee or director
was denied access to the Avdit Committes,

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requiréments)
Regulations, 2015, a separate section on corporate governance practices foflowed by the Company, together with 3
certificate from the Company’s Auditors confirming compliance forms an integral part of this Report.

STATUTORY AUDMTORS:

M/s. 0. P. TULSYAN & CO., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No: 5000 28BN| were appointed as the
statutory Auditors of the Company at the 34th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th September,
2018 for a period of 5 (Five) years and to hold office from the fina ncial year starting on 1" day of April, 2018 till 31*
March 2023. The term of M/s, O. P, TULSYAN & CO. will come to an end at the conclusion of this ensuing Annual
General Meeting and their eligible for re-appointment and have given 3 notice that their re-appointment if made will
be in accordance with the conditions as may be prescribed and they have slso given a cértificate to the effect that
they. fulfill the criteria provided in section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, Your Board recommends: their
appointment as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a further period of five years.

The observations, if any, made by the Statutory Auditors in their Auditors Report together with Notes to Accounts, as
append thereto are self-explanatory and hence does not call for any further explanation.

The Report given by M/s. O. P. TULSYAN & CO., Chartered Accountants on'the financial statements of the Company
for the financial year 2022-2023 forms part of this Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014, the Board of directors of the Company has appointed Mr.
Sudipto Roy Chowdhury, Practising Company Secretary to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secrietarial
Audit Beport is annexed to this report,

CORPORATE GOV ANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the Corporate
Governance requirements set out by SEBIL, The reporton Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 27 of
SEBI (LODR} forms an integral part of this report, The requisite certificate from the Auditors of the Company
confirming compliance with the conditions of :':nrpnraite governance is attached to the repart on Corporate
Governance: A separate section on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis together with
the Auditors Certificate confirming the compliance of conditions an Corporate Governance as per Regulation 27 of
SEBI (LODR) form part of the Annual Report. '

COST AUDITORSRECORDS

Maintenance of cost records as required ufs 148{1) of the companies Act., 2013 is not required for the company.

DARDS MMENT ONTH LDITOR'S ORT
The observations of the Statutory Auditors, when read togethier with the relevant nates to the accounts and
accounting pelicies are self-explanatory. Further since there s no reservation, gualification or adverse remark in the:
Auditors Report there Is no explanation or comment of the Board in this regard.

Contd.....
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ERAUD REPORTIN

There was no fraud reported by the Auditors of the Company to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors
during the year under review,

CHIEF FINANCI WFFI CER (CFO FICATION

As required under Regulation 17(8} of the Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements formulated by Securitios
and Exchange Board of Indla [SEBI), the CFO certification has been submitted to the Board and & copy there of is
contained in this Annual Report.

RDEVALLIA 1

The Board of Directors have lald down the mannaor for carrying out-an annual evaloation of its own performiance, its
varfous Committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and relevant Rules and the
Corporate Governance requirements are In compliance with Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations, 2015. The
performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after sgeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of
various eriteria such as Board Composition, process, dynamics, quality of deliberations, stravegic discussions,
effective reviews, committee participation, governance roviews etc, The performance of the Committees was
evaluated by the Board after seeking jnputs from the Committer members on the basis af criteria such as
Committee composition, process, dynamics, deliberation, strategic discussions, efféctive reviews ete. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the perfarmance of the individual Directors on the basis of the
criteria such as transparency, analytical capabilities, performance, leadership, ethics and ability to take balarced
decisions regarding stakeholders etc.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
Your Company did not have any funds lyving unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years, Thersfore there were
ne funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund {IEPF),

ONMPL WITH SECRETA LSTANDARDS
The company has complied with the provisions of all the applicable secretarial standards as prescrived by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India including any -statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof as
prescribed from time to time.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE AN

BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016
No application has been made or proceeding pending under the insolvency And Ba nkruptey Code, 2016 during the
financial year under review,

INDER _INSOLVENCY

Buring the financial year under review the company has nat carried out any valuation for availing loan from any
Bank or financial institution nor entered into any one time settlement with them.
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PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED
[CIN: LS1226WEB1984PLCO3TI85]
8, Gunesh Chandra Avenue, Ist Floor, Saha Court, Kelkata — 700013

ANNEXLURE TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
(For the year ended 31st March, 2023)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Thie Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2023, in terms.
of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (The “Listing Regulations”).

Corporate Governance is modus operandi of governing a corporate entity which includes a set of systems,
procedures.and: practices’ which ensure that the Company s managed In the best interest of all carparate
stakeholders i.e. shareholders, employees, suppliers, customers and society in general. Fundamentals of Carporate
Governance include transparency, accountability, reporting and independence: For. accomplishment of the
objectives of ensuring fair Corporate Governance, the Government of India has put in place a framework based on
the stipulations contained under the Companies Act, SEBI Regulations, Accounting Sta ndards, Secretarial Standards,
etc. Corporate Governance has become a buzzword in the corporate world, Globalizations, widespread of
shareholders, changing ownership structure, Breater expectations, etc. have made a good Corporate Governance sin-
quo-nun of modern management.

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PNC Capital Trust Limited [CIN: L51226WB1984PLC037985] believes that good Corporate Governance is Essential
ta -achieving long term corporate goals and to enhance stakeholders' value. The Governance processshould ensure
that all resources are utilized in a manner that meets stakeholder's aspirations and societal expectations In this
pursuit, your Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance is led by a sirong emphasis an transparency,
accountability and integrity and complete and timely disclosures of corporate, financial and operational information
ta its stakeholders and your Company has been practicing the principles of Corporate Governance over the years.
All employees are bound by aCode of Conduct that sefs forth Company's policies on important issues, including
our relatipnship with clients, shareholders and Government.

1. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Corporate Governance Structure at PNC Capital Trust Limited [Cin: L51226WB1984PLCO3TI85] is as

under:

il Board of Directors : The Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management,
directions and performance of the Company. As its primary role is fiduciary in nature; the Board
provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and independent view to the Company's
management while discharging its responsibility, thas ensuring that the management adheres to
ethics, transparency and disclosure.

li} Committees of the Board: The Board has constituted the following committees viz. Audit
Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committes, Each
of the aforesaid Committees has been managed to operate with 3 given framewaork.

3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS -

During the financial year under review, the Board comprises of four Directors out of which Arvind Khemka
5 the Managing Director. The remaining three are Mrs. Priti Khemka, Mr. Rameshwar Prasad Khetan and
Mr. Raj Kumar Bajaj. Mr. Ganesh Kumar Thakur is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and Mr,
Nikhil Bajaj is the company secretary of the company,




Sixteen (16) Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2022-2023. The dates on which the Board
Meetings were held are as follows : 04.04.2022, 13.04.2022, 28.05.2022, 10.06.2022, 06.07.2022, 03.07.2022,
IE.H?.!DI_I. 13.08.2022, 25.08.2022, 05.09.2022, 12.11.2022, 14.11.2022, 22.12.2022, 16.01.2023, 11.02.2023 &

17.03.2023,
The intervening gap between the two consecutive mieeting is as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The composition of the Board of Directors and attendance of Directors at the Board Meeting and at the
last Annual General Meeting as also the number of Directorships and Committee Memberships held by
them in other companies are given below :-

Mame of Category DIN Noof | Attendance No. of Nou _ni
Directors Board of Last Directorship | Committee
Meetings AGM in other membership
held On Listed in other Listed
I 29,00 Iﬂﬂ Companies Companies
Akt dy
1. Arvind Khemka Managing 00425495 10 Yes 1 3
{Managing Director) Direator
2. Raj kumar Baja independent | DD42E553 16 Yes 2 6
Director
Mon Executive | 07141324 15 Yes .
3. Priti Khembka Director
Independent | 00506972 16 Yes 2 6
5. Rameshwar Prasad Director
Ehetan

4. AUDIT COMMITTEE :-

(a)Composition:

The Audit Committee of the Board is constituted pursuant to section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
18 of the Listing Regulations. comprising of 3 (three] Directors, as it's members namely Mr. Arvind Khemka, Mr.
Rameshwar Prasad Khetan and Mr, Raj Kumar Bajaj . The detalled terms of reference of the Committee is provided in
the Corporate Governance Report. The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee met four times during the vear on 10.05.202 2,09.08.2022, 08.11.2022 & 13.02.2023,

number of meetings attended by the members of the said committee is as under: -

MName of Director No. of Meeting attended
1. M Arvind Ehomka [Chairman) 4
& M Rameshwar Pd.kRetan (Member) 4
3. M. Raj Kumar Bajaj {Membar] 4

(b) Terms of Reference:

The Audit Committee inter alia performs the functions of appraving Annual internal Audit Plan, review of financial
reporting system, intérnal controls system, discussion on financial results, interaction with Statutory and Internal
Auditors, one—on-one meeting with statutory and Internal Auditors, recommendation for the appointment of
Statutory Auditors and their remuneration, recommendation for the appointment and remuneration of Internal
Auditors, Review of Business Risk Management Plan, Management Discussions and Anahysis, Review of Internal Audit
Reports, significant related party transactions. The Company has framed the Audit Committee Charter for the
purpase of effective compliance of provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the
Listing Regulations. In fulfilling the above role, the Audit Committee has powers Lo investigate any activity within its
terms of reference, to seek information from employees and to obtain outside legal and professional advice,

15—




5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(a) Compaosition of the Committee: :-

The Kemination and remuneration committee of the Board Is constituted under section 178 of the Companies Act
2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations and has three Directors as it's members namely Mr. Rameshwar
Prasad Khetan, Mr. Arvind Khemka and Mr. Raj Kumar Bajaj. It is constituted to formulate the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director, and recommend to the Board & policy
relating to the remuneration for the key managerial personnel and other employees of the company. Four meetings
of the aforesaid committee were held during the year on 12.05.2022, 10.08.2022, 09.11.2022 & 14,02.2023,

The number of meetings attended by the members of the said committee is as under: -

Mame of Director No. of Meeting attended
1. Mr. Rameshwar Pd. Khetan (Chairman) 4
2. Mr. Arvind Khemka (Member) 4
3. Mr. Raj Kumar Bajaj (Member) 4

(b) Terms of Reference: _
The terms of reference and the scope of Namination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Director are in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made thereunder and Repulation I9 of SEBI
{LODR) 2015,

{c) Remuneration Policy:

The Remuneration Policy is directed towards rewarding peffarmance, It s attracting and retalning high caliber
talents. The Company has- an incentive plan which is linked to performance and achievement of the Company's
objectives. The Company has no Stock option Scheme. The details of the payments made to the Managing Director
during the year are given below :

Service Conirac

Years Petiod
1. Arvind Khemka 300000 {Rermuneration For The Peried 3 Appoiniment 15 Managing Director for
{Ma““ging Dlmwl Froms :u&l JHI}IUEE I.U'JIH !‘-E:rl:h EDHI Pfri[hj of 5 _:rﬂr5 with ellect r“-r.“
SN e

6. STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakehalders Relationship Committee is constituted pursuant to Sub Section 5 of section of 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and as per Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) 2015, consists of three directars namely Mr. Raj
Kumar Bajaj, Mr. Rameshwar Prasad Khetan and Mr. Arvind Khemka. This Committee is constituted to resclve the
grievances of security holders of the Company. The Stakeholders Relationshi p Committee met four times during the
year on 14.05.2022, 11.08.22, 10.11.2022 & 15.02.7023.




The number of meetings attended by the members of the said committee is as under: -

Name of Director No. of Meeting attended
1. Mr, Raj Kumar Bajaj (Chairman) 4
2. Mr. Rameshwar Pd. Khetan (Member) 4
4. Mr. Arvind Khemka (Member) | 4

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:-

A. Location and time for last three Annual General Meetings were:

* A Far the year Day/Date Time WELE
ended

3ath 31.03.2022 | Thursday/ 29.09.2022 10.00am. | 8.G.CAvenue, Saha Court, 1" Floor, Kal=13

37th | 31032021 | Wednesday/ 29.09.2021 | 10.00a.m. | 8,G.C Avenue, Saha Court,1” Flaor, Kol 13

36th 31,03.2020 | Wednesday/30.12.2020 | 10.00 a.m. B,G.C Avenue, Saha Court, 1" Floor, Kol -13

B. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS AT THE LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS:

No Special resolutions have been put through by postal ballot o far by the Company,

C. WHETHER ANY SPECIAL RESOLUTION PROPOSED TO BE CONDUCTED THROUGH POSTAL
BALLOT

Mo resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
9. DISCLOSURES :-
i} The company has not entered into any related party transactions during the financial year under review.
ii} There is no accounting treatment different from that prescribed in Accounting Standards.
lii] The Company has complied with all the requirements of the SEBI (LODR] 2015 as well as reguFatinns_fmd
guidelines of SEBL. No penalty has been imposed by SEB! or any Stock Exchange(s] on matters related to Capital

Market so far during the last three years,

v} Quarterly Compliance Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated in Regulation 27 of SEBI (LODR) was
prepared for different quarters and were placed before the Board.

¥} The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Regulation 27 of SEBI {LODR).

vi)  Whastle Blower / Vigil Mechanism Palicy - As required unser section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company has established a mechanism for Directors and employees to réport concerns about unethical
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or viclation of code of conduct ar ethics policy. The mechanizm also
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of director(s) / employee(s) wha avail of the mechanism
and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in the exceptional cases. We affirm
that during the financial year 2020-21, no employee or director was denied access to the Audit Cammitiee.

vii} There Is-no Acdit Qualification,

viii} There is no suhsl'dlarv Company.




I, CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION

As required under the Listing Regulations, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer has submitted a
compliance certificate to the Board of Directors and a copy thereof is contained elsewhere in this Annual Report.

11. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a. The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results of the company are sent to the Stock Exchanges’
immediately after they are approved by Com mlttu.."&uard and also published in newspaper.
b. At present the company does not make presantation to institutional investars and analysts,

¢: The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is a part of the Annual Report.

12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS IHFﬂRMAT[DN -
3. AMMNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Day, Date & Time
Venue

b. Book Closure Date

¢ Dividend Payment Date

d. Financiat Calender
Year Ending of

e, Listing on Stock Exchange

Friday, 29.06.2023 at 10.00 a.m.

Registered Office :

&, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, Saha Court,

18t Floor, Kolkata - 700013,

! 23rd September 2023 (Saturday) to 29th September
2023 (Friday), both days inclusive,

Mot applicable since dividend not declared.

March 31

The equity shares of the Company are presently
listed at Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd, but the tradings

_ are-suspended,
f. STOCK MARKET INFORMATION -
i} Market price : Calcutta Stock Exchange
MONTH HIGH(Rs} LOW/ Rs)
APRIL,22 No Trading Ma Trading.
| MaY, 22 No Trading Mo Trading
JUNE, 22 Mo Trading No Trading
JuLy,22 Ne Trading Mo Trading
AUIG,22 Na Trading No Trading
SEPT,22 No Trading_ Mo Trading ny
QET. 22 Mo Trading Mo Trading
| NOV, 22 Mo Trading No Trading
DEC.22 No Trading No Trading
JAN, 23 Mo Trading Ma Trading
FEB, 23 Na Trading Mo Trading
MARCH, 23 Mo Trading No Trading
i) Registrar & Transfer Agents:  Maheshwari Datamatics Put. Ltd,,

23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata — 700 001

g DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 315T MARCH'® 2023




Table |

DISTRIBUTION OF HOLDING

Mo, of Equity Share.  Holders No. of Shares % -of Shares
Shares held Number % of Shareholder held
(1} {2) (3 (4} (5]
Upté - 500 5945 81,52 729796 10.0%
501-1,000 236 363 208021 286
1,001-2,000 114 1.76 183510 2.53
2,001-3,000 49 0.75 126273 1.74
3,001-4,000 25 0.3% EGLEDD 1:20
4,001-5,000 28 0.43 133500 1.84
5,001-10,000 34 0,52 248100 3.41
10,001 and above Bd 1.00 5546500 To:a7
6405 108:00 7262500 100:00

h. Share transfer system :-

The: power to transfer the shares is delegated to the above-mentioned Registrar & Transter Agent. Shares in physical
forms with duly executed transfer deed can be sent to them for transfer. Shares in the demat form can be sent to
them through D.P, If the decuments are found correct & valid, the shares are transferred, and if not found in order,

It is returned to the shareholders / D.P, within 15 days.

i. Dematerialisation of Shares & Liguidity :

The Equity shares are registered for dematerialation with the National Securities Depository Ltd. & Central

Depository Services Ltd. The shares are dealt in the Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
5tatus as on 31st March, 2023:

Particulars No. of Shares No. of Shareholders % of Capital |
NSDL 108715 853 8.51
COSL 221985 384 5.91
Physical 3931800 5563 85.58
Total 7262500 6500 100

j- Code of Conduct

The Board of Diréctors of the Company has laid down Code of Conduct for Directors and for Senior Management &
Employees. All Board Members and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the
year under review. Declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Directar & Chief Executive Officer i< annexed to
this report,

k. Qutstanding GDRs/ADRs, Warrants etc. - Mil
. Plant Locations - There is no plant of the Company.

m. Address for correspondence by Investars -

Regd. Office v 8, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, st Fioor,Saha Court,
Kolkata - 700 013
Registrar-& Transfer Agent Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Lid.

23, R, N, Mukherjee Road, Sth Fioar, Kalkata - 700 001,

Note: Shargholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all correspondence through their respective
depository participants,




CERTIFICATE BY MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

The Board of Directors

WSS, PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED
B, Ganesh Chandra Avenue

1" Floor, Saha Court
Kolkata-700013.

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Directar and Chief Financial Officer of M/$
PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED.("the Company”), certify that:

a.  We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March,
2023 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, state that:

i| -these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading.

fi} these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b.  Tothe best of cur knowledge and belief, none of the transactions entered into by the Company during
the year ended 31st March, 2023 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

€. Weaccept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to
financial reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or
propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee —
{) -significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year:

(i} significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been distlosed
In the notes to the financial statements: and

{ii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of
the management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system

over financial reporting, (., E

‘i‘_!,u_.L

Arvind Khemka Ganesh ST akur
Menaging Director Chief Financial Officer

Kalkata,




Chairman’s Declaration on Code of Conduct

As required under Regulation 26 of Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and. Disclasure
Requirements) Reguiations, 2015, the Managing Director Declaration for Code of Conduct is given befow:

To the Members of

PNC Capital Trust Limited [cin: 151226WB1984PLC0O37585)

{a)  We have reviewed financial statements and the tash flow statement for the year and that to the
best of our knowledge and belief:

il  Thesestatements do not contain any materially untrue statemant or omit any material fact
or contain statements that might be misleading;

(i} These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

th) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Compa ny

During the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct;

{e) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company
pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any of which we are aware and
the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

{d)  We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committes;

(i)  Significant changes in internal control over fimancial reporting du ring the year;

(liy  Significant changes in accounting policies during the vear and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements: and

[iii)  Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein,
if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the company's
internal system over financial reporting.

By Crder of the Board
For PNC CAPITAL TRUST LFMIT%}

Place : Kolkata P’\ %L_ﬁ—-‘*—*

. Arvind Khemka
Date : 30.05.2023 (DIN: 00428455 )
Managing Director

Declaration by the Chairman under Regulation 27 of SEBI (LODR) (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015,

To the Members of PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED.

In accordance with Regulation 27 of SEBI (LODR) {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, with the Stock
Exchanges, |, Arun Kumar Khemka, Managing Director of PNC Capital Trust Limited [CiN: L51226WB1964PLC037985)
hereby confirm that all the Mambers of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Persannel have affirmed

compliance with the Code of Conducts.

Place | Kolkata Arvind Khemka
Date : 30.05.2023 (DIN: 00428485 )
Managing Director



ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS® REPORT
From No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31MARCH 2023
{Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies [Appaintment and
Remuneration of Managerial Prersomnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

M5 PNE CAPITAL TRLUST LIMITED
&, Ganesh Chandra Avenige

1" Floor, Saha Court,
Kolkata-T00013

I kave tonducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
gocd corporate practices by M/s PHC Capital Trust Ltd, having it's Registered office at 8, Ganesh Chandra Avenue 1%
Floar, Saha Court, Kolkata-700013, having CIN L51226WB13B4PLEDITO8S (hereinafter ca Red "the Company.”) for the
financial year ended 31/03/2023. The aforesaid Secretarial Audit was conducted purivant to section 204(1) of the
Companies Act 2013 and Rule 9 of the Compantes {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel Rules
J014] in a manner that provided me 3 reasonable basks for evaluating the carporate conductsf statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion therecn.

Based on my verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and aka the informaticn provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
fepresentatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my apinion, the company has, during
the sudit periad covering the financial year ended on 31 March 2023, complied with the statutory provisions [ated
hereunder and alo that the Company has proper Board Frocesses and compliance mechankm in place ta the
Ex1ENL, in the manner and subject to the reparting made hereinalter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by “the
Company” for the financial year ended on A1/03/2023 according to the provisions of -

(il The Companies Act, 2013 [the Act} and the rules made there under
(7] The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1556 ("SCRA’} and the rules made th ereunder;
(] The Depostories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder,

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.)

(] The fallowing Regulations and Guidelines prescrived under the Securities and Exchange Board of Indig Act, 1992
('SEBI Act’) (a3 may be amended from tima to e )=-

(a} The Securities and Excha nge Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
4011{as amended from time ta time);

(b] The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insidar Trading) Regulations, 2015{as amended from
time to fime);

[c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018(as
amenrded from time to time),; {Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.) :

(d] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1599 / Securities and Exchange Board of Indla {Share Based Empleyee Benefits) Regulations
2014 {as amended from time 1o time), (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period.|;

(e} The Securities and Ewchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt securities) Regulations, 2008] Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit period |;

(1} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an lssue and Share Tra nsfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (a5 amended from time to time]:

(&) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009( Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period): and




{h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018(Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period ) and
(vi) all other laws as may be applicable specifically to the EDmpany.

| have aho examined compliance with the applicable dauses of the following:

({} Secretarial Standards issued by The institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and
General Meetings
{ii} The SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidekines, Standards, etc. mentioned above,

| turther report that :

The Board of Directors of the Company i duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors and Woman Director.

As infarmed to me by the Company adequate natice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarfications on the agenda items before the meeting and for mieaninghul
participation at the meeting.

Majority cecision were carried through and recorded as part of the minutes,

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the sire and
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compiiance with applicable aws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| turther report that during the audit period the company has not undertaken any event/action having a major
bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws; rules, regulations, guidelines, standards,
etooreferred tg abave.

Meme: ‘é;!FT’D ROY CHOWDHURY
[ Company Secretary in Practice)
ACS RO, 17130

CRND: 7420

PLACE: KOLEATA

DATE: 18/09/20213

UDIN : AD17130E001031354
PEER REVIEW NQ. 2808/2022

Nate: This report should be read with my letter of even date which s annexed as Annewure-A and forms an integral
part of this reporL.




"Annexure-A"( To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/S PNC Capital Trust Ltd, for the Financlal Year Ended 31"
March, 2023

Ta

The Membery,

PHC CAPITAL THUST LIBITED
B, GANESH CHANDRA AVENUE
1" FLOOR SAHA COURT
EOLEATA-700013

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended ; 31/03/2023 of even date i to be read along with this
letter.

1] Maintenance of Secretarial Record s the responiibiity of the management of the Company. My responsibility s to
EXPrEss an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2} I have followed the Audit practices and processes as were appropriate, to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correciness of the contents of the secretarial records. The vertfication was done on test bass to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. | believe that the processes and practices that | followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

3} | have not verified the correctness and appropriatensess of Financlal records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

1) Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the complance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

5] The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applcable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
respansibility of the Management. My examination was limited 1o the verification of procedures on test basis.

6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance a3 to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which management has conducted the alfairs of the Company.

Place: Kolkata e
Date: :
j\ E‘\j ’2_3 _5-} o CPNo ez
Name: SUDIPTO ROY HURY  /
{ Company Secretary in Pract E‘, at
ACS NO: 17130
CPRNO: 7420

UDIN : AD1T7130E001013354
PEER REVIEW NO, 2808/2022




Compliance Certificate from Auditors on Corporate Governance

To the Members of

PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED
8, Ganesh Chandra Avenue,
1" Floor, Saha Court,

Kolkata — 700013,

We have examined the compliance of Corporate Gowernance by PNC Capital Trust Limited [CIN:
L51226WB1984PLC037985] for the year ended 31st March, 2023 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and
clauses (b) to (i} of Regulation 46(2) of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of india (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Regulrements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the résponsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations, It is
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion in the financial statements of the Company.

Qur respansibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance, It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion.on the financial statements of the Company

We have carrled out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accauntants of India (the ICAI), the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143{10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the
purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purpases issued by the
ICAl which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI

We have examined the books of account and other refevant recards and documents maintained by the Company for
the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the
Company.

We further state that sich compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the {:umpahn,,r ar tha
efficiency or effectiveness with which managément has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For O. P. TULSYAN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 500023N

Anafiesttd

Place : Kolkata.
(4. K. BHARUKA)
Date : 30.05.2023 PARTNER
M. No. 051736

UDIN :23051736BGWOCC4168



O P TUISYAN & CO. 156, Lenin Sarani, 2nd Eloor,

Roaorn Mo, 226, Kolkata - 700013,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
PHMC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone (“Ind AS") Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone (“Ind AS") financial statements of M/S. PNC CAPITAL
TRUST LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss and the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as "the standalone financial
statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 {"Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015,
as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its Profit, change in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone (“Ind AS") financial statements in accordance with the
standards on auditing (SAs) specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we have fulfilted our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements,

Key Audit Matters

e e
Key audit matters are these matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mostsignifica o in-oor audit of the
standalone financial staternents of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of aur audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our apinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters,



O PTULSYAN & CO. 1564 Lenin Sarani; 2nd Floor,

Room Na, 226, Kolkata - 700013,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
i
Sr. No. | Key Audit Matter
1 Accuracy of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of revenues and other related

balances in view of adoption of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts withCustomers” (new revenue
accounting standard],

The application of the new revenue accounting standard involves certain key judgements relating to
identification of distinct performance cbligations, determination of transaction price of the identified
performance obligations, the appropriateness of the basis used to measure revenue recognized over a
period. Additionally, new revenue accounting standard contains disclosures which invelves collation of
information in respect of disaggregated revenue and periods over which the remaining performance
abligations will be satisfied subsequent to the balance sheat date.

Refer to:Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Auditor's Response

Principal Audit Procedures
* We assessed the Company's process to identify the impact of adoption of the new revenue
-accounting standard. Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls and substantive testing as follows :

= Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to implementation of the new revenue
accounting standard.

* Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts, and tested the operating effectivensss of the
internal contral, relating. to identification of the distinct performance obligations and
determination of transaction price, We carried out a combination of procedures invalving enguiry
and observation, re-performance and inspection of evidence in respect of apeération of these
controls,

. Tested the relevant information technology systems’ access and change management controls
relating to contracts and related information used in recording and di'sv!:]nsing revenue in
accordance with the new révenue accounting standard.

Selected a sample of continuing and new contracts and perfarmed the following procedures:

* Read, analysed and identified the distinct performance obligations in these contracts,

* Compared these performance obligations with that identified and recorded by the Company.

* Considered the terms of the contracts to determine the transaction price including any variable
cansideration to verify the transaction price used to compute revenueand to test the basis of

estimation of the variable consideration,

tested using a
dnvaicing and

* Samples in respect of revenue recorded for time and material ¢
cambination of approved time sheets including customer accepta
historical trend of collections and disputes. [E=1)




O P TULSYAN & CO. 1564, Lenin Sarani, 2nd Floor,

Room Mo, 226, Kolkata - 700013,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTAMNTS

e

= Sample of revenues disaggregated by type and service offerings was tested with the performance
abligations specified in the underlying contracts.

* In respect of samples relating to fixed-price contracts, progress towards ﬂthfﬂét[ﬂﬂ of
performance obligation used to compute recorded revenue was verified with actual and estimated
-efforts from the time recording and budgeting systems, We also tested the access and change
management cantrols relating to these systems.

+ Sample of revenues disaggregated by type and service offerings was tested with the perfarmance
obligations specified in the underlying contracts.

* Performed analytical procedures for reasonableness of revenues disclosed by type and service
offerings.

= We reviewed the collation of information and the logic of the report generated from the
budgeting system used to prepare the disclosure relating to the periods over which the remaining
performance obligations will be satisfied subsequent to the balance sheet date.

r. Key Audit Matter i
Accuracy of revenues and onerous obligations in respect of fixed-price contracts involves critical
estimates.
Estimated effort is a critical estimate to determine revenues and liability for onerols obligations, This
estimate has a high inherent uncertainty as it requires consideration of progress of the contract, effarts
Incurred till date and efforts required to complete the remaining contract performance abligations,
Refer Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements,

Auditor’s Response !

Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls and substantive procedures which included the
following :

-+

Evaluated the design of internal contrals relating to rmr&lng of effarts incurred and estimation of efforts
required to.complete the performance obligations.

Tested the access and application contrals pertaining to time recording, allocation and budgeting systems
which prevents unauthorised changes to recording of efforts incurred.

Selected a sample of contracts and through inspection of evidence of performance of these contrals, tested
the operating effectiveness of the internal controls relating to efforts incurred and estimated,

Selected a sample of contracts and performed a retrospective réview of efforts incurred with estimated

efforts to identify significant variations and verify whether those variations haVie Sieen. considered in
estimating the remaining efforts 1o complete the contract. ;:ff{" it
il oM
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Auditor's Response

+ Reviewed a sample of contracts with unbilled revenues to identify possible delays in achleving
milestones, which require change in estimated efforts to camplete the remaining performance
-obligations.

+ Performed analytical procedures and test of details for reasonableness of incurrad and estimated
efforts.

3 Key Audit Matter

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions

The Company has material uncertain tax positions .including matters under dispute which invalves
significant judgment to determine the possible outcome of these disputes.

Refer Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Auditor's Response

Principal Awpdit Procedures

Obtained details of completed tax assessments and demands for the vear ended March 31, 2023 fram
management, We involved our internal experts to challenge the management’s underlying assumptions in
estimating the tax provision and the possible outcome of the disputes. Our internal experts also
considered legal precedence and ather rulings in evaluating management's position on thess uncertain tax
pasitions. Additionally, we cansidered the effect of new information in respect of uncertain tax positions
as at April 1, 2018 to evaluate whether any change was required to management’s position on these
uncertainties.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon,

Qur epinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, LT
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 [5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial perfarmance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act.. This respansibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasanable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completensss of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company er to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The board of directors are also responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Cur abjectives are ta obtain reaspnable assurance about whether the standalone fimancial staterments asa whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes aur
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and -are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reéasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken an the basis of these financial staterrents.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: yﬁqi‘ﬂﬁ

f ""—( _._H\“‘L 1y
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* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraed or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error; as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal cantrol.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circomstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial conteals system in piace and
the operating effectiveness of such contrals.

= Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriaténess of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or canditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as'a geing concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty axists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financlal statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern:

= Evaluate the gverall presentation, structure and content of the ﬁrranci:li_ statemeants, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Company to express an
opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

Materiality Is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, imdividually & in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgesble user of the standatone
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and quantitative factors in [F} planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and {ii] to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, an%ppli:ﬂbl&, related
safeguards, LS,
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefare
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s repart uniess law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or whien, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies [Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of india in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
Annexure "A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so faras it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The balance sheet; the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account:

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified under
section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.;

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

{f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrals aver financial reporting of the company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure “B*. and

(8] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations Eiven to us, the mapagerial
remuneration, if any for the year ended 31" March 2023 has been paid/provided by the Company to its
directors in accordance with the provision of section 197 read with schedule v to the act.

{h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Re port in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of Ll W{'@\'@tiﬂﬂ and
according to the explanations given to us; o N

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact [L{ HW

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including der;uaw.}s_i‘-‘_
there were any material foreseeable losses; :
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jii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transférred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company:

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned ar Invested
{either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds | by the
company to or in other person(s) or entities including foreign entities {“intermediaries”) with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall
whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company [“Ultimate Beneficiaries®) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries to the Standalone
financial statements,

(b} The management has represented that, to the best of it knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts; no funds have been recelved by the company from any person(s)
ar entities including foreign entities ("funding parties”) with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall whether directly or ‘indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding parties {“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the' like an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries to
the Standalone financial statements,

(c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable-and appropriate in the
circumistances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to belisve that the representations
under sub clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11{ e), as provided in {a) and (b} above contain any material
misstatement,

v. Since the company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, the gquestion of commenting
on whether dividend declared or paid is in-accordance with Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 does
not arise,

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using -accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trial (edit log) facility is
applicable to the company with affect from April 1, 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule
11{g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 s not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2023,

For O. P. TULSYAN & CO.

Chartered Accauntants
Hﬁﬁ?-'ﬂ‘H\I Firm Regn. No, S00028N
fa &N . i
fe t’:l::" Hﬂ-ﬂ'hﬂ'\wt _}
i FKolkata n-il "_;-""
Place : Kolkata 5 "x\_/ 2/ { ‘A-K. BHARUKA )
ik iz
R e Partner
Date ¢ 30.05.2023 A Membership No. 051736

UDIN : 23051736BGWOCC4168
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- ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The annexure referreéd to in our Independent Auditors Report under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal &
Regulatory Requirement’ of even date to the members af M/s. PNC Capital trust Limited on the standalone financial
statements of the company for the year ended 31" March, 2023.

On the basis of such checks as we considerad appropriate and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations provided to us by the company and the books of account and records examined by us in'the narmal
course of audit, we report that:

i. {a} (A]The Company has maintained proper records (tangible & intangibile) showing full particulars,
Including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment on the basis of
information available,

(BIThe company does not have any intangible Assets, Accordingly, Clause (i)(a)(B} of paragraph 3
of the arder is not applicable.

(bl  Asexplained 1o us, Property, plant & equipment have been physically verified by the ma nagament
at reasonable intervals. In odr opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

{e)  Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the title déeds of immovable praperties are held in the name of thé company and
there is no immovable properties which are held not in the name of the Company, hence not

applicable
Description | Gross Heldinthe' | Whether Period held - | Reason for not
of Property | Carrying name of Promoter, indicate range | being held in the
Value Directar of where name of the
their applicable Ccompany
Relative or
| employee |
M. A, |

{d)  According ta the infarmatian and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued ite Property, Plant and Equipment
during the year. Therefare, the provisions of clause (i){d] of paragraph 3 of the order are not
applicable ta the company.

(e} Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation Biven to us, no proceedings Have:
been initiated during the year or are pending against the com pany for holding benami property
under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder as
at 31" March 2023, Therefore, the provisions of clause {i}{e) of paiﬂﬁ@_@ drder are not
applicable to the company. Fa ” ’1"':_}__.,
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ii. {a) As explained to us, the inventories have been physically verified by the management at

Wil

(b)

reasonable intervals during the year. In owr opinion, the caverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate having regard to the size of the company and the
nature of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from Banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
{li){b}.of paragraph 3 of the order are-not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
books and records by us, the company has made investments in, ‘not provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to the
tompanies, firm, limited hability partnerships or any ather parties, Therefore, the provisions of
clause (iil} (a}, (c), id). (e} and {f} of paragraph 3 of the arder are not applicable to the company.
However the company was granted short term business advances to the companies or other
parties and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances are not prima facie
prejudicial to the interest of the company and the repayments are regular a5 per the schadule of
repayment..

(k) Accerding to the infarmation and explanations Eiven to us and-based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant
of lpans are; prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,2013 in respect of
loans, investments | guarantees and security.

In-our opinion-and according to the information and explanations given o us, the company has
not accepted any -deposits from the public; hence clause (v of paragraph 3 of the arder s not
applicable to the company. Accordingly, directiveés issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provishons of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies
{Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not
applicable.

Ta thie best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Governance has not specifisd maintenance
of Cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act . n“ﬁ"i‘,ﬁﬁl@\\nf company is
LY v
products/services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause {vi) of par Epﬁ EX: F‘v'?rder' are not
applicable to the company.
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wik,

(a)

(b

()

(b

(d}

(e}

if

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basls of our examination of
the records of the company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employmes.-State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales:
Taw, service tax, goods & service tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, value Added Tax, education
Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by
the company with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation given
to us, there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 31st March’ 2023 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable.

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, there are not any statutory dues
referred in sub clause {a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. Therefore, the
provisions of clause |vii}{b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

In cur opinton and according to the information and explanations given to us, the campany did not
have any transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to-us, the company has not
defaulted in repayment of any laan or other borrowings or any interest due therean to any lender,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other fender,

In our opinion and actording to the information and explanations given to us, the loans were
applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

In our opinion and accarding to the information and explanations given ta us, there are no funds
raised on short term basis which have been utilized for long term purpose.

In eur opinion and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meat the obligations of jts
subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures,

In our opinien and according te the infarmation and explanations given to us, the campany has not
raised loans during the year on the pledge of secarities leld in its subsidiaries, associates, or joint
ventunes,
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wii,

i,

Xy

il

la}

(k)

{a}

{b]

{c)

(a}

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us by
the management, the company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the provisions of clayse (xHa) of paragraph 3 of the -
order are not applicable to the company,

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3{x){b} of the Order is not applicable .

Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has neither committed any fraud nor any fraud on the company has been
noticed or reported during the year

Based upon our audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations
Biven to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rulé 13 of the Companies [Audit and
Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of thic FEPO.

Based upon oir audit procedures and according to the information and explanations. given to us,
there has been no instance of whistle Blower complaints received by the Company during the year
under Fidit,

In our opinien and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the company is not a
Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause [xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are nat
applicable to the company.

In our opinion and ‘as per the ‘information and explanations Eiven to us by the management, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the Standslone Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards, identification of related parties
were made and provided by the management of the cam pany.

The company is not covered by section 138 of the Companies Act 2013 related to appointment of
internal auditor of the company. Therefare, the company is not reguired to appainted any internal
auditor, Hence, the provisions of clause (xiv) of pa ragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the
company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the"
management, the company has nat entered into amy nion-cash transactions with directars or
persons connected with him for the year under review, Accordingly, the provisions of clause (xv) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the compary, hence not commented upon,

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on uj‘ér ha

-:-:-
examined by us; the company is duly registered under section d5- t
Act, 1934,

5
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Date : 30.05.2023

(b}

{c)

{d)

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the company hasa.
valid certificate of registration {COR) from Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause xvillc) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of
audit, the Group does not have any CIiCs,

The company has not incurred cash loss in current financial year as well as in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the previous statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other infarmation accompanying the financial statements, the
auditor’s knowledge of the board of directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its
lizbilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period-of one year
from the balance sheet. We, howeier state that this i notan assurance as to the future viability of
the company, We further state that our reporting is based on the facts as on the date of balance
sheat under review / audit and we nejther give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liakjligles
falling ‘due within a period of ane year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the
company as and when they fall due.

The provision of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are niot applicable on the

company. Accordingly the provision of clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to

the company.

The company has not made investments in subsidiary company. Therefore the company does not
require to prepare consolidated financial statement. Accordingly, the provisions of clagse i} of
paragraph 3 of the-order are niot applicable to the compa ny and hence not commented upaon,

For O.P. TULSYAN & CO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 500028N

{ A-K-BHARUKA )

Partner
Membership No. 051736

UDIN : 23051736BGWOCCA168
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"Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone (“Ind AS"} Financial Statements
of M/fs PNC Capital Trust Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i} of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s PNC Capital Trust Limited. (“the
Campany”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the yvear ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issied
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India :I:f.ﬁ.t:, These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financlal controls that wers aperating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies; the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and completeness of the atcounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an epinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in aceardance with the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guldance MNote®) and the Standard on Auditing, issued by ICA| and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable ta an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both (ssued by the ICAL Those
standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirement and plan and perform the audit
ta obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intérnal financial contrals over financing reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in 3ll material respects,

Our-audit involves performing procedures to obtain audil evidence about the adequacy of the internal finangial
cantrols system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our-audit of internal financial controls
over financing reporting include obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
-assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and ope rating effectiveness
of internal contral based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstaterent of the standalone financial statements, whether due 1o fraud
OFError.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriat ; de a basis for our apinion
& - "
an the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. /4 3 \x‘“{:
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles: A company's internal financial tgntrnl over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, -accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; [2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 35 necessary Lo permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and -directors of the company ;. and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detéction of unauthorized acquisition, use, or di'spusitian of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financing Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
tollusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial contrals over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over tinancial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriarate.

Opinion

In gur opinion, the company has, in all material respects, -an adequate internal financial controls systém over
financial reporting and such internal financial contrals aver financial reporting were operating effectively as at March
31, 2023, based on the internal cantrol over fina ncial reporting criteria established by the company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Fimancial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Acesuntants of India.

For O. P. TULSYAN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 500028N

Ao By

Place : Kolkata [ A K. BHARUKA )
Pgrr!'lfr
Date : 30.05.2023 Membership No, 051736

UDIN ; 23051736BGWOCCA168
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PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED

CIN:L51226WEB1984PLCO37985
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2023.

BRIEF PROFILE
The company s incorporated on 217 September, 1984 at Calcutta, West Bengal, India. It is-a Public limited

company by its shares. The company is one of the RBI registered Non-Depasit taking Company NBFC and is
into the business of Finance and Investments. The activities of the company includes financing, investing in
shares & other securities, Government and Non-Government Bonds, Fixed Deposits, Commodities and other
related activities of capital market.

The Registered Office of the Company is situated at 8, Ganesh Chandra Avenue,1”™ Floor, Saha Court,
Kolkata-700 013,

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

1.2

1.3

Statement of compliance:

Thie financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting
standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time) Issued by Ministry of ‘Corporate Affairs in
exercise of the powers conferred by section 133 read with sub-sectian (1) of section 2104 of the
Companies Act, 2013, In addition, the guidance notes/announcements issusd by the: Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are alse applied along with compliance with other statutary
promulgations require a differant treatment.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31 2023 of the Company is the first financial
statements preépared in compliance with Ind AS, The date of transition to Ind AS-is April 1, 2017, The
financial statements upto the year ended March 31, 2018, were prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (“Previous
GAAP') and other relevant provisions of the Act. The figures for the: year ended March 31, 2018 have
now been restated under Ind AS 1o pravide comparability. Refer Note 43 for the details of first-time
adoption exemptions availed by the Company.

Basis of preparation:

The financial statements have been prepared an the historical cost basis except for certain financial
Instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reparting periad.

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs ta the fair value measurements are ohservable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurament in its entirety, which are descritied as follows:

= Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markers for identical assets or labilities
that theCompany can access at reporting date

* Level 2 inputs are inputs; other than guoted prices included within lovel 1, that are S LS ‘F,tﬁ,
abservable for the asset arliability, either directiy or indicactly: and e 3

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities - :|
) ""..
Presentation of financial statements:

The Balapce Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format
prescribed in the Division 1l to Schedule |1l to the Companies Act, 2012 (“the Act”) applicable for Non-
Banking Finance Companies [“NBFC”), Tha Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as
per the requirements of ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect 1o
iterms in the Balance Sheetand Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 1l to the Act,
are presented by way of notes farming part of the financial statements along. with the other notes
reéquired to be disclosed under the notified accounting Standards and the SEBI (Uisting Obligations and
Disciosure Requirements) Regulations, 7015, '
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1.4

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is. recognised to the extént that it is probable that the economic benefits will fliow 1o the
Company and the revenue can be reliatly measured and there exists reasonable certainty of fts recovery,
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable as reduced for
estimated customer crédits and other similar allowance.

Incame from arbitrage comprises profit / loss on sale of securities held as stock-in-trade and profit / loss
on equity derivative instruments is accounted as per following:

i.

Interest income s récognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and far al financial instruments
except for those classified as held for trading or those measured or designated as at fair value th raugh
profit or loss (FYTPL) is measured using the effective interast method (EIR).

The calculation of the EIR includes all fees and points paid or réceived between parties to the contract
that are incremental and directly attributable to the specific lending arrangement, transaction costs,

and all other prémiums or discounts, Far ﬁ'nancial_assets at FVTPL transaction costs are recognised in

profit or loss at initial recognition.

The intérest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit
impaired financial assets {i.e; at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any
expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financlal assets the Interest income is calculated
by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets {i.e. the gross ca reying
amount less the allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs)). For financial assets originated or
purchased credit-impaired (POCI) the EIR reflects the ECLs in determining the future cash flows
expected to be received from the financial asser.

- Dividend income iz recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established by the

reporting date and no significant uncertainty as to callectability exists.

Fee and commission income: and expense include foss other than those that are an integral part of
EIR. The fees.included In the Company statement of profit and loss include among other things fees
charged for servicing a loan, non-utilisation fees relating to loan commitments when it is unlikely that
these will result in a specific lending arrangement and loan advisory fees,

- Profit / loss on sate of securities are determined based an the FIFD cost of the Securities soid.
. Profit /loss'on FNO Segmient and Commodity transactions is accounted for as explained below:

Initial and additional margin paid over and above initial margin for entering into contracts for Equity
Index / Stock Futures / Com medity Spet Trading/ Currency Futures and or Equity Index / Stock Options
/ Currency Options, which are released an final settlement / squaring-up of underlying contracts, are
disclosed under "Other current assets”, Mark-to-market ma rgin-Equity Index [/ Stock Futures /

Currency Futures representing the amaouonts paid in respect of mark to market margin is disclosed
under "Other current assets”,

“Equity Index [ Stock Option / Currency Option Premium Account” represents premium paid or
received for buying or selling the Options, respectively.

On final settlement or squaring up of contracts for Equity Index [ Stock Futures / Currency Future, the
redlized profit or loss after adjusting the unrealized loss already accounted, IFany, is recognized in the
statement of Profit and Loss. On settierent ar squaring up of Equity Index / Stock Optians / Currency
Option, before expiry, the premium prevailing In "Equity Index / stock Option / Currency Option
Premium Account™ on that date is recogmizad in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

As at the Balance Sheet date, the Mark to Market / Unrealised Profit / (Loss) on all outstanding
arbitrage portfolio comprising of Securities and Equity / Currency Deriug.lmﬁgmlﬂ._igns is determined

0n scrip basis with net unrealized losses on serip-basis being rEmEhh‘.?dé]dﬁ'.‘ ' ia}ﬂ_e;m of Profit and
Loss and the niet unrealized gains on scrip biasis are ignored. ff '5:_‘ .ll

' —.1 :’i.'
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1.7

vi. Other operational revenue represents income earned from the activities incldental to the business and:
is recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the dsset can be measured refiably.
Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits avaited, if any, less sccumulated
amortisation and cumulative impairment. Direct ekpenses and administrative and other general overhead
expenses that are specifically attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitatised
asa part of the cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets not ready for the Intended use an the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible
assets under development”,

Intangible assets are amortised on the written down valué method aver the estimated useful life. The
method of amortisation and useful life are reviewed at the end of sach accounting year with the effect of
any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis,

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected fram
use ar disposal. Gains or losses anising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are recognigsed in profit

-or lass when the asset is derecognised.

Praperty, Plant and Equipments

Freehold land is carried ar histarical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
ristorical cost less depreciation less impalrment loss, if any. Historical cost comprises of purchase price,
including. non- refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item 1o its working condition far its'intended use.

Sulstequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate Fsset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the iterm can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged 1o statement of profit or 1555 during the reparting period in which they are incurred,

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separated items | major components) of property, plant and equipment,

Degpreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis-on the written down value method over the estimated Usafil
lives-of the assets which in certain cases may be different than the rate prescribed in Schedule 1l to the
Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usages-of the assets.

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewsd, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting periad,

Class of Assets Useful life as prescribed in | Useful Tife as followed hy the
' Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 Company (in years)
{in years)
Free Hald Land = -
Dffice Equipment 5 5
Computer & Accessories 3 3
Furniture & Fixture 10 10 |
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The assets’ residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the edofeach reporting period,

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than jts estimated recoverable amount,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing procesds with carrying amount and are
recognized as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss,

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its: PPE and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested
for impairment o0 as to determine the impairment loss, if any. Goodwill-and the intangible assets with
indefinite life are tested for impairment each year,

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of ‘an asser exceeds its recoverable amaount.
Recoverable amount is determined in the case of an individual asset, 3t the higher of the net selling price
and the value in use,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted ta their present value using @ pretax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the aswet for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not beeh adjusted.

IF recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating Gnit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amaunt, such deficit is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and
the carrying amount of the asset {or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amaunt. For this
purpose, the impairment loss recognised in respect of a cash generating unit is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill ailocated to such eash generating unit and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets of the cash generating unit ona pro-rata basis.

When an impairment |ods subsequently reverses, the carrying amaunt of the asset {or cash generating
unit], except for allocated goodwill, is increased to the revised estirate of its recoverable amaunt, hut so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would havé been
detérmined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit] in prior years, &
reversal of an impairment loss (other than impairment loss allocated to goodwill} is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Lass,

Employee benefits;
i. &hort term employee benefits:

Employes benefits falling due whally within tweblve months of rendering the service areé classifiad as
short term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the
related service. Liabilities recognised in respect of shart-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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il, Post- employée benefits:

al Defined contribution plans: The Company's superannuation scheme, state governed provident fund
scheme, emplayee state [nsurance scheme and employee pension scheme are defined contribution
plans. The contribution paid/ payable under the schemes (s recognised during the peripd in which
the employee renders the related service,

b} Defined benefit plans: The employees’ gratuity fund schemes and employes provident fund schemes:
manaé,ed by board of trustees established by the Company, the past-retirement medical care plan
and the Parent Company pension plan represent defined benefit plans. The present value of the
obligation under defined benefit plans is determined based on- actuzrial valuation using fthe
Projected Unit Credit Method.

The obligation is measured at the prasent value of the estimated future cash flows using a discount
rate based on the market yield on government securities of a miaturity period equivalent to the
wélgh_teﬁ average maturity profile of the defined benefit abligations at the Balance Shest date.

Re-measureme nt, camprising actuarial gains and losses, the roturn on plan assets {exclhiding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset) and any change in the
effect of asset celling (if applicable] is recognised in other comprehensive incorme and is reflected in
retained edrnings and the same is not eligible to be reclassified to profit or loss.

Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost. past service cost and gairis or losses on
settlements are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expences.
Interest cast impficit in defined benefit employes cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss under finange cost: Gains or losses on settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised
when the settlement accurs. Past service cost is recognised as expense at the parlier of the plan
amendment or curtailment and when the Company recognizes related restructuring costs or
termination benefirs.

Incase of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets i< reduced from the gross chligation under
the defined benefit plans ta recagnise the abligation on a net basis.

lii. Long term-employee benefits:

The obligation recognised in respect of long term benefits such as long term compensated absences
is measured at present value of estimated future cash flews expected (o be made by the Company
and is recognised in 3 similar manner as in the case of defined benefit plans vide (i} (b) above,

Iv. Terminaticn benefits:

Termination benefits such as compensation under emplioyee separation schemes are recognised as
expense when the Company's offer of the termination benefit is accepted or when the Campany
recognises the related restructuring costs whichever is earlier.

Financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are reeognised in the Company's balance sheet when the Company
becomes aparty to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities [other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at FYTPLL are added to or dedu
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recogn
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets ar financial fiah
immediately in profit or loss.
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A financial asset and 3 financial liability is offset and presented on net basis in the balance sheet when
there is a current legally enfarceable right to set-off the recognised amaunts dnd it is intended o either
settle on net basisor to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

Write off:

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company
determines that the borrawer does not have assets or sources of income that could generabe-sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a de-recognition event.
The Company may apply enfdrcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting from
the Company’'s enforcement activities will Fesult in impairment gains,

Impairment:

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on the fallowing financial instruments that are not
measured at FVTPL:

s Loans and advances Lo customers;

*  Debtinvestment securities;

*»  Tradeand other receivable:

» Leasereceivables;

«  Irrevocable loan commitments issued; and
*  Financial guarantee contracts issued.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial dsset is ‘credit-impaired’ when ore or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial assets are

referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit impairment Includes observable data abiout the
following events:

= significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer:
* abreach of contract such as 3 default or past due event;

* the lender of the harrower, for economic or contractual reasons refating tothe
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrawer a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider:

 the disappearance of an active market for a secu rity because of financial difficulties: or
= the purchase of a financial 2sset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred cradit Iosies,

It may not be possible to identify a single discrete event instead; the combined effect of several avants:
may have caused financial assets to become credit-impaired, The Comipany assesses whether debt
instruments that are financial assets measured at amortised cost ar FVTOCK are credit-impaired at pach
reporting date. To assess if corparate debt instruments are credit impaired, the Company considers
factors'such as bond yields, credit ratings and the ability of the borrower to raise funding.

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession it granted to the borrower due to a
deterioration in the borrower's financial candition, unless there is evidence that as a result of granting
the concession the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there
are no other indicators of impairment. For financial assots where cunces-sigﬁﬁie‘ zmplated but nat
granted the asset is deemed credit impaired when there is chsgrvable Elgehce o
including meeting the definition of default. The definition of default [see be

pay indicators and a back-stop ifamounts are overdua for 90 daysor muit:;
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Cash and bank balances:

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with
banks and other bank balances which have restrictions an repatriation. Short term and liquid
investments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are net included as part of
cashand cash equivalents.

Securities Premium Account:
i. Securities premium includes:
= The difference between the face value of the equity shares and the consideration recetved in
respect ofshares issued pursuant to Stock Option Scheme.
= The fair value of the stock options which are treated as expense, if-any, in respect of shares
allotted pursuantto Stock Options Scheme,
ii. The issue expenses of securities which qualify a5 equity instruments are written off against securities
Premium account,

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method; finance cha rges
in respect 'of assets acquired on finance lease and exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrawings, to the éxtent they aré regarded as an adjustrent 1o interest costs.

Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temparary investmient of related borrowings,
that are attributable to the acquisitian, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as
part:of cast of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale, A qualifying
asset 15 an asset that necessarily requires o substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
ar sale. All other borrowing costs are recognisedin profit or loss in the periad in which they are incurred.

Accounting and Reéport of Information for Operating Segments:

Qperating .segments are those components of the biisinese whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating . decislon making body in the Company to make decisions for
performance assessment and resource allocation. The reparting of segment information is the ame as
pravided to the management for the purpose of the performance assessment and resource allocation to
the segments. Segment accounting policies are in line with the aﬁmunting policies of the Company,

Forelgn Currencies:

. The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. Functional
currency of the Company and foreign operations has been determined tased on the primary
economic environment in which the Company and its foreign operations operate considering the
currency in which funds are generated, spent and rétained.

I, In currencies ather than the Company’s functional currency are recarded on initial recognition using
the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each ‘Balance Sheet date, foreign currency manetary
items are reparted at the prevailing closing spot rate. Mon-monetary items that are measured in
terms of histarical cost in foreign currency are not retransiated,

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of manetary Iems or on reporting of monétary items
at each Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognised in the Statement of Profit-and Loss
in the period in which they arise. '

i, Financial statements of foreign operations whoese functional :un;efil; Lt than Indian Rupees
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A assetsand liabilities for each Balance Shieet presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that Balance Sheet;

B income and expenses for each income statement are translated at aw.-r'ag_n exchange rates; and

€. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as forefgn currency translation reserve for subseguent
reclassification to profit or loss on disposal of such foreign operations.

Taxation:
Current Tax:

Tax on income for the curreént period is determined on the basis of taxable income (or on the bagis of
book profits wherever minimum alternate tax s applicable) and tax credits computed in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and baced on the expected putcome of assessments/appeals,

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences batween the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of
taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively eracted as on the
Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets'ic reviewed at the end of each reporting periad
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxabile profits will be available to
affow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the head “capital
Bains” are recognised and carried forward to the extent of available taxable temporary differences or
where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient futurs taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax dssets can be realized. Deferred tax assets in respect of unutilized tax credits
which mainly relate to minimum alternate tax are recognised to the extent it is probable of -such
unutilized tax credits will get realized,

The measurement of deferred tax labilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Lompany expects, at the end of reporting period, to recaver or setthe the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit or loss, aither in ﬂ[ﬂmﬁhemlw ncame ar
In equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable. ,.f.‘fus?d,_qr

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised only when:
L. an Campany entity has'a present obligation (legal or mnsirucmré: asa result of a past event;-and

ii. it Is probable that an outflow-of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle theobligation; and

i, areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation

Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to setile the present oblfigation aind when the
effect of time value of mioney is material, the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of
those cash flows. Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is
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recognised anly when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be recelved.
Cantingent liability ks disclosed in fase of:

I @ present obligation arising from. past events, when it is not probable that an cutflow of
resources will be required 1o settle the abligation; and

i @ present obligation arising from past-events, when no reliable estimate Is possible.

Cantingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is prebable. Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Where the unavoidable costs: of meeting the obligations under the ‘contract exceed the ecanamic
benefits expeécted to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract it
recognised and measured as a provision,

Statement of Cash Flows:

Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into aperating; investing and
financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the
net profit for the effects of:

« changes during the period in opérating recaivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;
v nan-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferrad taxes, unirealised gains and losses: and
¢ all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash eguivalents (including bank balg nces) shown in the Statement of tash Flows-exclude
items which arenot available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

Earnings Per Share;

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings pershare data for its ordinary shares. Basic edrnings
per share s calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to erdinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ardinary. shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per stiare Is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributabie to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,

Key source of Estimation:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS reguires that the management of the
Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses
af the period, the reported batances of assets and labilities and the disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are

reviewed on an ongeing basls. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of praperty, plant
and equipment & Intangible assets, expected credit loss an loan beoks, future obligatierssn re
retirement benefit plaps, fair value measurement ete. Difference, if any, betweeny:
estimales is recognised in the period in which the results are known,

Changes in Accounting Standard and recent accounting pronouncerne
Standards issued but not effective):

On March 30, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companiss {Inﬁ: Accounting
Standards) Miﬂendmentjl Rules, 2018, notifying Ind AS 116 on Leases. Ind AS 116 would replace the
existing leases standard Ind AS 17. The standard sets. out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures for both parties to a contract, i.e. the lesses and the lessor,
Ind 45 116 introduces: - single fease accounting model and réquires 3 lessee to recognise assets and
liakilities far all leases with a term of mare than 12-manths, unless the underlying asset is of low value,
Currently for operating lease, rentals are charged 1o the statement of profit and foss, The Company is
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currently evaluating the implication of Ind AS 116 on the financial statements,

The Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 notified amendments to the
followingaccounting standards: The amendments would be effective from April 1, 2019

% Ind A5 12, Income taxes — Appendix € on uncertainty over income tax treatiments
Ind AS 19— Employeés benelits

Ind AS 23 - Borrowing costs

Ind AS 28— investment in asseciates and joint ventures

S

Ind A5 103 and Ind AS 111 — Business combinations and joint arrangements
% Ind AS 109 — Financial instruments

The Company is in the process.of evaluating the impact of such amendments.

Inventories:

Stock in trade of shares f debentures are valued at cost without recognizing temporary diminution in
their values.

Other Income Recognition

Interest on Loan is booked on a ime proportion basis taking info account the amounts invested and
the rate ofinterest,

Dividend income an investmeants is accounted for when the right to receive the payment isestablishied.

Purchases
Purchase is recognized on passing of ownarship in share based on braker's purchase note.

Ehpen_diturer
Expenses are accounted for on accrual basis and provision is made for all knawn losses and labilities,

Investments

Current investments are stated at the lower of cost and fair value. Long-term invéstments are stated at
cost. A-provision for diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in the value of
long-term investments. Investments are classified into current-and long-térm Investments.

- ) } . e
Investments that are readily realisable and are intended to be hield for not morethan s
date, on which such investments are made, are classified as current investmémlm ot

gar from the
Myestments

are-classified as non- current investments, e ’.:*.'i]
A L
5 '
Related Parties )
X :..

as.the abality
to: control the other party or exercise significant influence aver the other party in making financial
and/or operating decisions.

As required by AS-18 "Related Party Disclosure” only foliowing related party relationships are covered:
* Enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled

by, or are under comman control with, the reperting enterprise (this includes halding Companies,
subsidiaries and fellowsubsidiaries);

< Asspriates and jaint ventures of the reporting enterprise and the invisting party ar ventureé in
respect of whichthe reporting enterprise is an dssociate or 3 joint venture;

“ Individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the reporting enterprise
that gives them control or significant influence over the entérprise, and. relatives of any such
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individual,
< Key management persannel (KMP) and relatives of such personnel: and

% Enterprises over which any person described in {iil) or (iv) is able to exercise significant influence.

Stock In Trade
Stock in trade of shares/debeéntures are valued at cost without recognizing temporary diminution in

their values.
Units of Mutual Funds are valued at cost-or market value whichever is lower. Net asset value af Gnits
dectared bymutual funds is considered as market value for non-exchange traded Mutual Funds,

Fair Value Higrarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2'- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obéervable for the
asset or liability, eitherdirectly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

Leviel 3 - Inputs far the assets or liabilities that are nol based on observable market data {unobservable
inputs),

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Poligies:

The Company's activities are exposed 1o a variety of Financial Risks fram its Operations, The key financial
risks include Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk.

3 Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair valug of fullire cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comgrises mainly three types of
risk, foreign currency risk, Interest rate risk and ather price risk such as Equity price risk and
Commaodity PriceTisk.

i, Foreign Currency Risk:
There are na Foreign Currency transactions during the financial year.
ii.  Foreign Currency Sensitivity:
There are no Foreign Currency transactions during the financial year.
iv.  Credit Risk:
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty might nat honor its obligations ‘under a financial

instrument or customer contract, leading to & financial boss. The company is exposed to credit risk
from its.operating activities (primarily trade recoivables).

V. Trade Recaivables:

Custamer credit risk is managed baséd on company’s established policy, procedures and controls.
The company assesses the credit guality of the counte rparties, taking into account their firancial
position, past experience and other factars,

Credit risk is reduced by receiving pre-payments and export letter of credit to the extent possible,
The Company has a well-defined sales policy to minimize its risk of credit defaults, Quistanding
customer receivables are regularly monitored and assessed, The Company follows the simplified
approach for recognition of impairment loss and the same, if any, is provided a %Fffﬁﬁf\pemﬂ
e Ly il
5

customier's credit risk-as on the reporting date. { }"F‘\T ¥

vi,  Liquidity Risk: %

i
=
' 1=l I s
Liguidity risk is the risk; where the company will encounter difficulty in megl g the obligations
associated with its financial Habilities that are settled by delivering cash or at‘ﬂ:&\ sgot,
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The company’s approach is to ensure-as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due,

131 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies General:
- Contingent Liaﬁilities_ﬂu Commitments, - Nil

oAdditional Information disclosed as per Part || of the Companies Act, 2013 - Nil

1.33 Cashand cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liguid Investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrewings in current liabilities in the Balance sheet. '

1.34 Earnings/{loss) per share:

i. Basic earnings/ (loss} per share
Basic earnings/ (loss) per shareds calcutated by dividing:
* thieprofit attributable to owners of the Company
* by the wﬁghtg:ﬁ average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year.

i, Diluted earnings / (loss) per share
Diluted earnings / {loss) per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
shire totake into account:

* he after incomeé tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equityshares; and

* the weighted average number af additianal-equity shases that would hive been cutstanding
assumning theconverston of all dilutive potential equity shares,
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Partiutars A ak March &3 al dAach
F1. 2023 11, M
+ |latgrgat receivable on depasits : i
Setusity Deposit 150,00 140,60
Total 15000 15006
it
12, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Partetulard As ait il A3 01 Mareh
31 2033 A, 023
|Unsecured, Corsidered Gaad)
Acvancey fersppply of goods and rendesing of services
Advantes lar Praportees 1,00, 0048 00 1.00.000.00
Total 100 D00 0 1,00.000:00
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AN FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT JIST MARCH, iﬂ"'l
ANDSTATEMEN T OF PMROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAN ENDED ON THAT AT

13, EQUNTY SHARE CARITAL

Aimasnts In Bs. Mundreds
PEruulars A4 5t Maach Az 34 March
31 200% 31, 2022
Autheried
7:300,000 [hdarch 311 2021 ;73000007 Eguity Share of 130,000 3000000
[R5 10 magh T
7. 30,000.00 7,30:000.00:
lisued, Subsoined B Paid-ug Capital . -
THA3400 [Wanch 3330210 - 7, 289,400) Eguity Share ol R 1 gach 7,34,840.00 7.24.540.00
bquaty Shaned af B4 10/~ each paio up in ek But nat lully pala - .
Quiianding ¢ the beginning of the yoar LoD HEH e ]
hicd: lpuediSutnenbod) Bai up during th vias - -
|Laris: Bought backyfarfeiied during the year . »
TAE:T50.00 T3 200
13.1 RECONSILIATION OF THE NUMBSER OF EQUITY SHARLS OUTSTANDING
Prat ity b, of Sharey

Ay 3 Mgreh 31, 223

AL gt Marchi 1], 2033

Mo af Bhirieg ot ike beginaing 73,48 400) 7240400
Add ¢ Adenien during the year . :
Npmbdr ol Shards 3t the éng 1245400 72.49,400

FRZSHAREHOLDEAS HOLDING MORE THAN 55 EGLITY SHARES

Partcolary Ma, al Shares
As a8 March 31, 2033 s gt Sarzh 3] 1022
il HiL
htid il
13,3 PROMOTEAS SHAREHOLDING
Partifufat &4 gk March 31, 20023 As-at March 31, 3612
E wal
ML Hirhiegi K, bl mirg % Changs
“RAREY LHARis B ing ine yaal
HIL ML M AL
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M}TI-'_E A'ﬂ\t.."ﬂ:.-ﬂl T ARD FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET A% AT 315T MARCH, I3
AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR EXDERON THAT DATE

14, OTHEREGUITY
Amounts inRE Hubdreds ©
Panizular A a1 Mgich iy 0 Rarch
] 31, 3023 11, 022
Icmummmm - =
SECunhEs Fremivm Resen 1835000 T4 35000
Liets - Calfd in-&rrer {E55.00] HLLE
Lo s Beserve - -
Studany Rederve 12880.00 19 TTEDY
Ader: Buring the year 16,TRE.DO. 3.268 00
Hatalned Earniagt E1.28804 BE 22T
Add 1 aring (e ypar BIGIATS 16,339 08
Less Trarafer to-Stautiry Reserve 678300 (3258:00)]
Eher Comprehensive income : .
Exulty indtrument throsiph othed compeehanscn Ingem ¥ .
SOI89100 | 81707748

1.1 Riofer Sratemnent of changesin Equity for movement in Balancs of retenda

14 2 Cagital Redemation Reserve

Bepresent stV peMed during redmption of S8 Curnutative Tax Fre Rédoemable Préferanes Shared am i} by 3 men-eSnsiBatable reseng.

4.3 Secunbies Promum Hesere

SCur it Pramium Mese i réprp sk o Ziany Fataived i ssceis ol par valis ol SBEunElps and § ailafe fos uhilisatgn a3 sgecilied wndar secton 57 ol

Azt 2013,

184 Canorsd Rpdetug

The gonaral fesnree & created fram time to Fme by appearistag rafily Trom seisined earfin

feearather and seedddanghy it it reclasaified:to the Stacsment 'af prafy: FA

14,5 Aetaingd Sarmeags

Hetainad eaimings garavally reprosents the usdiitribotod prodisamamat of Geeimitite earrangs-od the Comaany

146 Cyihef Comprehaniive Income

A5 Treg giiaial redere in crested by 4 trasuled fam shn torpo

DESe COMDAFhRnLE MObme s FoEnt The BElaAEE S bty Tovibeed 1o e stcounted (i Dinpr Lumpretereve Inteme | BCT and comassi of th Following:

. The Comparry has elected bo recognise changes in ihe falr value o BRI CUTTENT InrEars n L,
Piew i B by o quity DnEbisimen s e asoned Bt fale vaton. Th Compeny trandlors amognts Fem this e

g,

Triseserye represents Uil cumutaiseg faing and icies
g B rﬂﬂrm_i carnings whien the relevant sguiy 56

8. The actuasial gaing andd hoties arising o remedsuremint of defined henelt obiligation heve boen ricagrised in OC1 and are adjusted in retaned arnings

15, OTHLR FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Partiduian As.a1 March &4 at Margh
31,3033 3. dox

Deposts

(il Frosms bbb paibprs
[ e ogheen
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_ [CIN £ LS1226W BI9SAPLO03T985]
NOTES ANNEXED TOAND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3IST MARCH, 2023
ANBETATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FORTHE YEARENOED 0% FTUAT DATE.

- ik PROVIEONS

Auniolents i B Husdeeds
{Pamicuish A3 a1 Bhpich A @) Btarch
! 31, 2023 11,4022
Il'lmi--'rm T ergines bose it -
1Y, DEFERAED TAX LLABILITRES
The Ealipwing 4 the aralysis of dalod red tax | asdoilSabiiie prosrded i 1Re Balance sheet
Partiutary #3538 March A5 at Mangh
F1, 2021 AL 20a2
. |Delerrea tan a3l . r
Dedorred tax Liabisics -
wiot Dedermed Tak LastetsliLiaadalos . -
" 15 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Particuian A3t Mareh A% at Margh
11, Jay3 11,3032
Wmsecured pansioered poosd)
LOAM AERAYARLE G DERAND
Dy Teati Uiesg (PHibd, 1500000 G000 00
Sy Klran Texides (P LEd. V00000 1%, 000 00
Globe Stocks & Seeurities Lia 30,000.00 20,550.00
G0, 000 ) 96.500.00
19, THADE PAYARLLS
Parikculary Ad ok Mdrch &5 3t March
31, 200y 'ﬂ; 2021
L8] Todal cutmanding dues of micra nipepeiass: §nd -
[} Tiotal oordasding duis of eredion oihes Ehas mvchg
Enandatine and small mntprprives L2a: 2044 2O0TETET
L6704 ] 20078137 |
19.1 AGEING OF TRADE PAYABLE
[Particetars _ outitanding for following seriods bam due date of pay Tartal
A Bt Margh 3 3002 Piait i bosthan 11 3ymani|  2-Fywans Wigre than
1 yoar I-I"I.'\-I:_'l-
(i) MSME : - : :
[ﬂi[hh!:f'_l. . - LA00 - . 116206 4% 1,26, 770 44
(i} diyputed dues - MSRAE - - - - . T
fiwh disputied dues - others = . . . - 5
Tatal - 5400 - - 12621640 12627048
A al Margh 13, 203 Réiy Gion Lasschan  [T-3yean]  2aFyears More than
1 yeat B ywars
[i} MASRIE
& ) Othery 3,00.781,25 R0 TR D6
{iik disputed dups - MEME ; :
{I¥] disputed dises - dihérs . . : . .
L -_| 27126 : 100,781 36
G
PR i’ | (RN
P w0
I'- i W Y
! | _H|||. . ' -], j'
W\ Y II.. yef oy
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SOFPES ANNENED TOOAND FORANG PATET O THE BAASCE SIEET Ak AT 3151 SEARCH, 2023
ASIESTATEME ST OF PROEIT &OLRS RO TIEY EAR ESIED G5 THAT DBATE,

- i QTR FINANCIAL LIAILITILS

Ammanis in e Hundneds

Particufar A% at March Ayal sApigh
31, 2023 31, 2022
Infargsn Payabi {Ralaled partyl -
> Unglasmiad deddends .
frﬂ'ﬂ"lﬁf? FRilamng 15 Capiis Caperdaorg
Sabyei, Wapet, Bonutand-Ciker Tmaloyees Fayables -
Orhaes
11, OTHER CURRENT LIARILITIES
{Famiculars a0 Mk Axal Margh
11 M3 il 1032
" |Advance Trom custamars : .
Slatutory duiey payabie 28,1200 1831480
TOS Payable 500 -
28,217.00 1921440
2. PROTSIONS
Fariiculary A% L htreh A at Bharch
31 Ha3 38, X2
Fgyesioor {or empsoyes benatily . =
Prerviaion Tor faxatron {net of advance tax] 1481041 1373607
Cantingent Provislon againit Stasdord Aasets RS Pt HITHA
F2.001.33 667391
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SOTES ANNEXED T4 AN FORMING PATT OF THE BALANCE SHEET A% AT JIST MARCH, 2025
AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE VEAR ENDED OX THAT DATE

15, BEVERLE FROM DPERATIONS

m.mu&m.umug&
As ot Raen

fanicutan Af ot March
31,2023 11200
Saw of products [$hates) 1561288 44,556:12
S ol products {Foisid] 1720130 '
m-.rﬂnu:kq Ihurlur
Salg ol thl-ﬁw SI.Tlp.. ll.l:.
mntrnﬂl'l‘ﬂlﬂ '
18544 0K T L R.3T
| T4, OTHER BRCOME
Az B3 gt Marh A al Wann
30T Mo |
IHGEEAE o KA1 AR5R2.53 175557
Inteiay zin # 1 [EET:
F & O Pignuuri S7.R30ED I.:I.l‘ifi'iﬂ']
FE QT |1, 31096} {1.501.651]
F o0 A T By 12, 000:00) -
Tracg AfE . 1228
Ectingesi Prérision agaist Stamdasd Aaveli LEERH i
Ehave dilferange Afe 13570 FALLS
D o Dited Evenlmients oo BEENSE LR 2310068
Liniey Balanca wich CE5T .
S 152 %) g AR
15 CO5T OF MATERRALS CONSUMED
Partulany Ay il Mach As B MR
{ b B1 a0
Purchaies o Eguugy Shaidy
26 PLRCHASE DF_FIIH_I I TRADE
Paryitulats A ap dtarch s at Merch
31, 2023 51 gy
g hadey Shares (Quoted &trn-quoted) V73452
Purthases (Patita) 20000240 -
2000050 773452
7 CHARGES N VENTORIES OF FINSHED GUOOS ATOO0IM. TRADE & WoRKan TRADE £ WORKAN-PROGRESS
|-Flr'|.i-|:|.ﬂhn & &% Marchi a4 &t March
30404 12082
S S 00w il h"\.irirl fibhaal.ai B 366005
Lot - Bapeirg il Prang h,?.l:ﬁ&-l_:gfi 0341008
TTEEE 557 768
?Pmiﬁﬁn Aw#__auﬂ.‘h A ai Margh
31, 3003 31, %02
Sallivy BAUERL TR0ETE
Salpry pC, FE0t sy 1 200,00 S 40000
Salary (hanaprg Devciod | &, DUOLDD, -
o b ] 4 T4 40
Seadl Wetste Eipénse i Irioy
T 162261
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ROTES ARNEXED TOASD PORNENG PART OF 'I'III-.BMA\'H:HHH:.T' A AT BISE AR MY

s ANDST ATEMENT OF PHOFIT & LSS PO THE YEAR ESBED DN THAT BATE:
TF. FINANCIAL COSTS
Amonints inKs, Hundmdi |
= [Felteulen Ak Wiech Aty
].].".E'H 3} 402
inteseat i z &1.13
= intenest on Leats LSy =
- 21,10
30, GEFRECIATION AND AMORTISED EXRENSES
{Panticidan AL 3t hiarchy A at Marth
31 2080 11 2027
Dapresisian for iy e
Dreleirged Risvprrug Exenadil ity Witen OHE
31, THIR EXPENSTE
Y [Pamulan A4 @y hargh A4 at March
i 2. g W aF
Lk & Erpuity stock dervivative 2350 na 148606
Trmtrurnn [E&:0) 1521 A0S
- Elamp Crarges BFADH - L4 g
“SamgDuty . - 155
Ceneral GST {FRE) 55,15 i
Slabe G5T (HEQ] 1535 A TESE
“Securities Tramiaction Chiarges (FED) L85 ] STRRS
Contingers Prosision sgainst Srandpd Aty - -
" Rand TR0 1L.GR000
Tfll'u‘i‘l:nl Esperniey H]Enl Toaz
Poatage, Telagian & Eoviries Charges 3R] L5
Printing & Stazigniany 17898 B14.54
General Expirmies A AR L2 6a
Tifing Faed 100 24300
Travelling Fagrias : 6500
* Whrrlftbl.hpln_l_l_l 15475 S5T.RT
Dapdictory Charpes 53100 31,00
“Piodeéxtions Fees 40000 o0
. Ay e g V1A &t 22
Egepaar & Wlantirangy EFER 17104
ProltEbons Taa 2500 500
Lt Chatgen .45 Tha
Suney Bak wotf 026
[-virting Charpes 5900 o0
Feralty | Short nlaegin| a150 "
Band Charges 15,10
Dgrvu Seiene e T
Ayt gy Asmimar shin .
Ag udd Teps EL T Habo
PERIAD 315 G5
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SOTES ARKEXED TOAND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET A8 AT JST MARCH, 2023

ANITSTATEMEST OF FROFIT & LO5S FURTIE VEAR EABERGS TIAT AT

3 TAK EXPENGES
Amiinis i R, Hundreds
Fartcutars Ab 1 MR &z at March
15, 208 37, Ml
Provision For Curiert Tas o A
AsafiLessh MAT Receiable : -
Diderred Tas -
] 5,305 4%
33, LARMING PUH SHARES [EPS)
Fauri Profd. aifer Tas o oee SLEi e il pralil e loss acnhid ey o f oy
Sraratwalar BAHIETS 1635504
HumEsr ol Ludy Shatid gisd at denomeraton ior caloulating EFS 132500 TLELED
Eagic s Deliad Cabningy fep Share (R 1.1 {22
Face Wi ol Eguiy Share [in By ) 10 b




PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED
CIN:L51226WB1984PLCO37985

Mote No. 34 - Contingent Liabilities not provided for

The Company does not have any contingency Liability as on the Closing of current financial year,

Note .

a} The Company has not provided for Gratuity Fund payable to certain employess.

(b} The Company is having investments in some of small cap illiquid stocks where sither there s very thin
trading or is no trading during the entire financial year. Even trading in-some of these shares has been
suspended by Stock Exchanges. The Company has valued these sha res on last traded price on BSE/CSE
and has not made any provision for the possible losses.

Ic) The audited financial statement, valuation of the unguoted investments are subject to the valuation by

independent valuer, as per management explanation they are under process to carrying out fair
valuation fram registered valuer, these are shawn its investment value

Note No. 35 - Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company does not meet the criteria specified in sub-section (1)-of section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Companies [Carporate Social Respansibility (CSR}] Rules, 2014, Therefare it is not
required toincur any expenditure on accaunt of CSR activities during the year.

Note No. 36 ~ Segment Reporting

The company is primarily engaged in the single business of trading in shares dnd securities and there is
no reportable secondary segment |.e. gecgraphical segment. Hence, the disclosure requirement of
Accounting Standard-17 "Segment Reporting” as notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006 |as amended) is not applicable.

Note No. 37 - Disclosure of Related Party Transactions:
Wholy owned subsidiary L Motanhy
Company under same Managemant . Not any

List of Companies where Directors are having common Directorship -
Risorgimento Industrial Co. Ltd.

Globe Stocks & Securities Lid.

Webtech Softwares & Services Ltd.

Webcom Softwares & Services Ltd.

Mars Online.Com Ltd.
Transactions with Related Parties - il
List of Related Parties on Board and Key Managerial Person and nature & value of transactions with
tham :
Name Nature of Nature of Transaction Transactran Value [Rs. in hupdred)
Eelation
Mr. Arvind Khemka Managing {Remunération For The 5.000.00
; - Period From zoth july zox2 = gvias
i Tog® Marchaoay 0 =4 o
Mr. Raj Kumar Bajaj Independent -

Directar

e B [ 3




PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED
CIN:L51226WB1984PLC037985

Mr. Rameshwar Prasad [ndependent =% i
Khetan Director
Mrs, Priti Khembka Non-Executive
Director
Mr. Ganesh Kumar Thakyr  Chief Financial
Officer

Note No. 38 - Details of Loans Given, Investments made, puarantees given covered under section 186(4) of the
Companies Act, 2013;

Since your Company s RBI registered NBFC (Non-deposit taking Company), provision of Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Campany,

Note No. 39 -~ Remuneration of Auditors: {Rs. in hundred)
Particulars 31.03:2023 31.03.2022
Auditors for Audit Purpose (Rs.) &0.00 £0.00
Auditars for Tax Audit Purpose (Rs.) A0.00° A0.00
On Other Matters 130.00 130,00

Note No, 40 -

There are no Micro and Small Scale Business Enterprises, to whom the Company dwes dues, which are
outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 2023. This information as required to be disclosed
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has bean determined to the extent
such parties have been identified an the basis of information available with the Company.

Note No. 41 - Recent Pronouncemerits

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) through a notifieation amended
Schedule lli of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revice Division I, Il and Il of Schedule I and
are applicable from April 1, 2021, Key amendmants relating to Divisian Il which refate 1o companies
whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian Arcou nting Standards) Rules
2015 are;

Balance Sheet:

«  Lease liabifities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial Habilities’, duly
distinguished -ascurrent or non-current,

= Cerntain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as chianges in equity
share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current
feporting period.

* Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

* Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-
progress.and intangible asset under development.

= Ifa company has notl used funds for the spacific purpose for which it was borrowed from
‘banks and financial institations, then disclosure of details af where it has been used,

» Specific disclosure under “additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with
approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of rﬂwwnmg title
deeds of immovable property not held in name of company,-iga doddvances to
promoters, directors, key managerial personnel [(KMP)-and -related'f#?ﬁréﬁ, detalld.of benami

™




PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED
CIN:L51226WB1984PLCO37985

property held etc.

Statement of Profit & Loss:

« Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R), undisclosed income and
erypta or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional infarmation’ in the notes forming part
of the standalone financial statements,

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluste the same to give effect to them as
required by law.

Note No. 42 - Details of immovable properties whose title deeds are not held in the name of the company

Description Gross Title  ceed Whether Property | Reason for not
of iterm of Carryi hatd in the Title Deed held since being hedd in the
Froperty g rame of the halderis g name of the
Vilue Company promoter, Company
director of
thiair
Relative or
Employes
Mot Any Kot Any | Mot Any ot Any Mot Any Mok ARy

Nete No. 43: The Company has nat revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year,

Note no, 44: Disclosure on Loans / Advances to Directors / KMP [ Related Parties

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advances in the | Percentage to the total
nature of loan outstanding Loans and
Advarices in the nature of
- foans
Payable on Demand
Pramoters
Cirectars MIL ML
Khpy
l Related Partios

Note No. 45 : There is no capital work in progress whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared
to its original plan, '

Note No. 46 : ! _ .
There are no Intangible assets under development or whose completion Is overdue or has exceeds its

cast compared o its original plan,

Note No.47: There is no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company for
holding benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1938) and
rules made thereunder as at 31" March 2023,

Note No.48:  The company has not been sanctioned any werking capital limits from Banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets and there are no materdal deficiencies to disclose,

o
Note No.49: The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by anf.m al Institutions or
by-any otherlender, g "-':._.

Note No.50:  The company has not utilized the fund raised from the bank or ﬂna@% ‘during the year,

-
u
|
ik

1
-
L i)




PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED
CIN:L51226WB1984PLCO37985

Note No. 51:  There is na charge ar satisfaction of charges are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies.
Note No.52:  The company has followed / complied with the number of fayers prescribed under clause {87) of
section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction-on number of Layers) Rule 2017.

Note No.53: Thére is no scheme of arrangements has besn approved by the competent authority in terms of

section 230 to 237 (Corporate Restructuring) of the Companies Act 2013,
Note No.54:  The company did not have any transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Incame Tax Act,
1861,
Note No. 55:  Details of CSR:
3 Amount required to be spent by the company
during the year
b Amourt of expenditure incurred
C Shortfall at the end of the year
d Total of previous year's shortfall
8 Reasan for shortfall MIL
f Nature of CSR activities
8 Details of related party transactions
L h Movement of provision during the year




PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED

CIN:L51226WB1984PLCO37985
Note No. 56:  Financial Ratios
5 Ratios Mumarator Denpminator | 31.03.2023 3L.03.2022 Vamanoe | Reason far
Ma major variance
(%)
3 Current Ratio Current Assels Current 7.3163 5.3638 36.40% Decrease in
Liakilities Current
Liabilities
b Debt Equity | Total Debt Sharehnlder's [T A A NA
Ratio Fund
= Debt  service | Earnings avallable | Debt service A MA A MA
coverage ratio | for debt service
d Return on | Netprofit aftertax | Average 01155 0.0225 413.58% | Increase in Neat
equity ratio -shareholder's Profits
fund
& Inventory Cost of goods seld - | Average 0.2070 0.4287 -S1.73% | Decreasein
turnaver ratio inventory Cost of goods
“sold
f Trade recelvable | Net credit sates Average 15,4914 45,7971 66.17% | Decreasein
turnover ratio account Credit sales
receivables
B Trade payables | Net credit | Average- trade 0.1223 00172 6090 10% Incredsi in
turnover ratio purchases payables Crisdit
Purchases-and
decrease in
average
Hoounts
payable
h et capital | Netsales hyverage 01250 2.2511 =50.23% DeEcrease in
turnover ratio working Het sakes
tapital
| Net profit ratio | Net profitafter tax | Netsales 8.4351 0.0436 89762% | Incredse n
Profitability
i Return on | Eamings  befora | Capital 0.0691 ‘0.0141 301.30% Increase in
cagital interest and tax emplayed Earnings
employed pefore Interast
and Tax
k Return en | Income fram | Total MNA HA
Investment Investmeant Investmants

|




PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED
CIN:L51226WB1984PLCO3T7985

Note No.57:  The company has not trade or invested Crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

MNote No. 58:  The company has not entéred in any transactions with any struck off companies under sectian 248 of
the Companies Act. 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act 1956,

Rote No. 59: The company has not borrowed any funds for the purpose of further lending, investment,

guaranty or security to the third parties during the year. Howevér the fund borrowsd and
utilized for lending, investment, guarantee or security to the third parties during the sarlisr
previous years for shart term purpose are pa rtially outstanding as on 31st March 2023,

Note No.60:  There are no-material differences between the gross and net (WDV) carrying amounts of each class
of assets, hence the reconciliation is not required.

Mote No. 61. Disclosure pursuant to RBI circular dated March 13, 2020 - Circular Mo, RBI/2019-20/170 DOR
IHBFC’,II.CE.I_"D.H:!.JWHE.m.iﬂrﬁﬂﬂl.?-!ﬂ =

Assat it Clasatlicatlon Gross Less het Prowision ifference
eltsfication % perling A% Canrying Allgwances Carrying requded ;i Bateepan e
a3 per REL 103 fmenint {Pravidioni} Amaiant par AP A5
o &y pet a5 fequsined Barms proviskons
Ind A5 wnder Ind AS arad
109 TRACH
Marms
15 {2 1 L [5pml3-{4) {1 (7] (a) =g
Performing Stage L

fssels Standard

Note No; 62. Additional information, 1o the extent applicable, {other than what is already disclosed elsewhere] is dischosed in

terms of Master Direction  DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016:17 dated September 01, 2016, as amended
s amended

i. CAPITAL TO RISK ASSETS RATIO (CRAR) -
Sl Mo, Particulars Current Year Fravious Year
i-inLakh) (in Lalkh)

a} CRAR (%) i e

b} CRAR - Tier | capital (96) - -

<) CRAR - Tier 1 capital (¥8) - =

dj Amaunt of subordinated debt raised as Tier- - &
Il capital

€) Amount raed by issoe of Perpatual Debt . =
Instruments

Note: NBS-7 Return yet to be filed

The figures-reported for the current year are based on Ind AS financials in terms of RBI Circular

il INVESTMENTS -
5.  ‘Particulars Current Year Previous Year
No: { in Lakh) {in Lakh)
1 Value of Investments: i e
i} Gross Value of Investients 565.44 B73.66
al In Irndia — -

by Qutside India




PNC CAPITAL TRUST LIMITED

CIN:L51226WB1984PLCO37985

{il}  Provision for Depreciation
a) In India
b) Qutside India

{il)  Value of Investments

&} Inindia 381.00 181.18
b) Outside India _ _
2 Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on - -
investments :
(i) Qpening Balance 29.45 29.45
(i Add : Provisions made during the year - -
fiil)  Less:Write-off / write-back of excess provisions o =
during the year
liv]  Closing balance 29.45 29.45
iii. EXPOSURE TO CAPITAL MARKET -
€. Particulars Current Year Previous Year
No. ' [ in Lakh) {in Lakh]
a) direct Investment in equity-shares, convertible bonds, convértible 45,45 854.85
debentures and units of equity oriented mutual funds the carpus -of
which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
b) advances sgainst shares / bonds | debentures or other securities or on v -
chean basls to individuals for investment in shares (including IPGs /
ESOPs), convertible bonds |, convertible debentures , and units of
equity-ariented motual funds:
€l advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or - -
convertible debentures or units of squity oriented mutual funds: are
taken as primary security;
d) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the - -
collateral security of ‘shares or convertible bonds or convertible:
debentures of units of equity oriented mutual funds Lo, where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bonds [ convertibla”
debentures [ units of equity orierted mutual Tunds does.not fully cover
the advances; _
e secured. and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees - -
issued on behalf of stotkbrokers and market makers:
i bridge boans Lo companies against expected equity flaws / issris; - .
g all expesures. ta- Venture Capital Funds (both  registered  and = o
unregistered)
Total Exposure to Capital Market Ga6,45 B54.85
h-mmm
Miaturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on 31.0!.2#2‘3
| Cwerl Qupr 2 Over3 Over b a
v month months mianths monkhs ! Cverd Char
to ek year to Yrars Total
3 1% to3 b6 tol i, tok 5
migsath mnth months rrignths year = i :ur
Deposits 0,15 0,15
Advanges 32735 32335
lrvestrments 946,45 946.45
Borrowings e B0,00
. ‘-\"'\.
Foreign AT :
CIJFFEI'II?" .'I.""' /}’,—\ i
Asgels {ld : 3 |
L_Fareign LY =i T
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Cutrency [
Liabilitles

& Equity shares amounting to Rs. Nil , are not included above, since there Is no set maturity patternfor the same.
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and labilities as on 31.03.2022

—
Chwer 1 Chprd Cver3 Ower 6B
Loy manth muoariths ‘manths mznth iy M 3 Dver 5 I
- to2 to 3 06 a1 Yot il yeass Taim
: months months months year ypeacs F YRS
= mianith
Cherpogits: 0.1% 015
'_'.'Adwance,r. 210,50 2050
Imwestments ERTN E:LTE:
D
. Borrowings -
Fareign 7
Curréngy
Ansels
Faretgn - =
Currency
Lizbslities

& Equity shares amounting to Rs, Nil , are not included above, since there s no set maturity patternfor the same.

In compiling the information in the above note, certain assumptions have Bign made by the Company andthe same have
been refied upon by the Auditars.

Note No. 63 — Other Notes to Accounts

= In the apinion of the management, current assets, loans and advances and other
recejvables are approximately of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary course
of business; The prui.risiqns of all known liability are ascertained, except for Trade
Receivables. Since the receivables are dues for more than one year, we. are not
certainabout the recoveries of the same. The tnr'nparn,- ts canfident of receiving the
dues and hence no contingency liabilities have beon provided.

= Previousyear figures have been restated to confirm the classification of the current
year,

~ Balances of Sundry Debtors, Unsecured Loans, and Sundry Creditors are Loans &
Advances are subject to reconciliation, since conformations have not heen received
from them. Mecessary entries will be passed on receipt of the same if required

» The company has not provided for Gratuity and Leave Encashment to Employees

on accrual basis, which isnot in conformity: TeAS-15 issued by ICAIL However, in
the opinion of management the amougt ivehred & 2gligible and has no impact on
Statement of Profit & Loss. e, :;“-ll.
- EaH
ir ]
=/
'-r; ..\_i_:-_‘_-"
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Note No. 64 - Figures of Rupees are in hundreds and quantitiesof shares are in number.

i Terms Of Our Report Attached Far and on behalf of the Board of directors
For O. P. TULSYAN & CO. |
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS S w{—“ﬁmewk*
Firm's Regn. No, S00028N Arvind Khemka

) DIN : 00428455
f}(*ﬁh‘“_‘*’fﬂb ! Managing Director
{ A K BHARUKA) - ta
Partner \
M. No. 051736 Raj 4

DIN

UDIN :23051736BGWOCCA168 Director

Place : Kolkata,

Rameshwar Prasad Khetan
bDate: 30.05.2023 DIM - DO50GET72
Directar
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Schedule of a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company
|as required in térms of Para 13 of Non-Banking Financial Company - Systematically impartant

Non - Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Eumpan_-.r (Reserve Bank] Directions, 2016)

{Unsecuredy
{ather than falling within the

Particulars in Lakhs

Liabilities Side Current Year Prawious Year

= Loans and adyances availed by the NBFCs. Amaunt Amount Amaount Amount
Inﬂ:!hreuf Interest sccrued thereon but not Qutstanding Overdue Cutstanding Overdue
a) Debentures {Secured) = = =

meaning of public deposits)
bl Deferred Credits

e) Torm Loans

d} Inter-torporaté loans and borrowing

el Commercial Papeors

ff  Public Deposits

g} Other Loans (Overdraft from Bank)
“entire.amount is on account of unclaimed
deposits finterest

| Assets Side

2,

Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills Amount uul!:bre; jother than those included in 3 hnlnwl

) -pecured

==

B Lntocpred

E'.I'E.'!W

971.46

_Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and

hypothecation loans counting towards AFC activities

i Lease assets including lease rentals
undessundoy debtors :
@) Financial Lease
bl Operating Lease

-

Il Stock on hire including hire charges-
undersundry deblors
) Assets on hire
b) Repossessed Assets

i, Other loans eognting towdrds AFC activities
a} Loans where assets have been
reposieised
b} Loans other than |a} above:

Inwe 5

Break-up of Investments : :{net of provision for diminution) (as per A5 13)

I. Quoted

399.89

255,55

|, Shares [a] Equity

{b) Freference

ii. Debentures and Bonds

il hpits of metual funds

71.00

. Government Securities

v. Cthers

It Un-Quoted

475,56

|, -Shares (a} Equity

{b} Preference

il Pebentures and Bonds

it Units of mutual funds

ki

v, Government Securities

v, Others

~} ==

S
--—.--"‘;)
B

=
- |
3 &
"

o
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Aeng Teom Invesiments

1. Guoted

L Shores{ah Equity

i Preference

i Deebentires aid Ronds

L. Units of routual funds

Iv, Govermment Securities

w. Others—Exchanges traded fond

il Un-Gunted

i.  Shares {a) Equity

|&) Peéfenince

ik Debentures and Bonds,

iil. Units of mutestfunds

iv. Government Securities

¥ Oihéers = Uinits.of Menture Capital Fund

Current Assetsl:

5, Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock-on-hirg 2nd loans and advances [including othor

Setured

Unsacusad

Total Secuted Unzecured Total

I, Rekated Parties

a] Subsidiaries

b Companles besams Graop

£l Other than refated partios

il, Cther than felated Parties

B, Ir-n_:'u_ut groug-wise clasafication of o8 invesoments feurrent and lony ferm)in i

and sepurities {Bath gueted snd angucted] |

Category

Market valuelifeak
uppoF mi
valug or HAY

Magean
vahie/Dreak
up o fair
walug o MAY

Bk Vahus{ Nt
af Proveiskans)

Bk Virlue
1Het of
Prowvigiong)

I.  Retated Parties

4] Subsidiaries

b) Companies in same Groep

cl  Other than related parties

I Other than Ralated Barfins

7. Qther Infermation

i Lakhs

Qioss Huﬁ-ﬁeﬁurmmg Astots

Brivvigusyedr

a) Related Parties

b) Other than Aelated Parties

Het Muanéermigg Asigls

a) Related Parties..

b} Other than Refated Parties

Assetsacguired insatisfaction of debt

Morms (RBI} Directions, 2016

Signatures to notes to standalone financial statements and NBFC | Naon-Deposit Accepting uanl:_Eng}cdmpames Prudential

For and on ba 'H’ihEEﬂrﬂ direcighs
LT l—r_'_i"'

i

Place ! Kolkata.

4 H%Wmdm

DN ; DOSO0ES72 -
Director

Date : 30.05,2023

Director

in Lakhs

In Lakhs




